PU IIC [%%g:slélg;‘n aQt PaClSo Holmes/Karen Hood

RYEDALE

Extension 310/386
DISTRICT

Date of Publication 13 October 2014
COUNCIL

E Mail jo.holmes@ryedale.gov.uk;

karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 21 October 2014 at 6.00 pm

Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

Agenda

1 Apologies for absence
2 Minutes of meeting held on 23 September 2014 (Pages 3-7)

3  Urgent Business

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest

Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 8 - 9)

6 14/00900/MFUL - Mill House, Scarborough Road, East Knapton, Malton (Pages
10 - 29)

7 14/00914/MFUL - Fosters Wold Farm, Weaverthorpe, Malton (Pages 30 - 49)

8 14/00613/OUT - Land Off Kirk Balk Lane, Claxton (Pages 50 - 66)

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666 Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

14/00856/FUL - Norton Bowls Club, Bowling Lane, Norton (Pages 67 - 78)
14/00882/HOUSE - Lilac Cottage, Main Street, Wombleton (Pages 79 - 89)
14/00883/HOUSE - Nesslyn, West End, Sheriff Hutton (Pages 90 - 98)
14/00889/HOUSE - Green View, Page Lane, Wombleton (Pages 99 - 111)

14/00909/HOUSE - Newlands, 4 St Peters Crescent, Norton  (Pages 112 - 119)

14/01039/FUL - Ryedale Swimming Pool, Mill Lane, Pickering (Pages 120 - 129)

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 130 - 134)

Update on Appeal Decisions (Pages 135 - 141)



Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee

Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Tuesday 23 September 2014

Present

Councillors Mrs Burr MBE, Cussons (Substitute), Mrs Frank (Vice-Chairman),
Mrs Goodrick, Hope, Maud, Richardson, Mrs Sanderson, Windress (Chairman) and
Woodward

Substitutes: Councillor D Cussons (for Councillor J Hicks)

In Attendance

Jo Holmes, Chris Osmond, Gary Housden and Matthew Mortonson

Minutes

83 Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Councillor Hicks.

84 Minutes of meetings held on 21 August & 27 August 2014

Decision
That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee’s held on 21 August
and 27 August 2014 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct
record.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain]

85 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

86 Declarations of Interest
Councillor Application
Cussons 6
Hope 6
Windress 6
Maud 6,11
Burr 6,7
Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 23 September 2014

Page 3



87

88

89

Goodrick 6
Frank 6
Sanderson 6

Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the
applications for planning permission with recommendations there on.

14/00734/MFUL - OS Field No 1811, Cawton Road, Gilling East, Helmsley

14/00734/MFUL - Establishment of a farmstead to include erection of a four
bedroom agricultural workers dwelling with detached double garage/store with
room above, erection of cattle shed and machinery/feed store and excavation of
an attenuation basin/pond, formation of stoned area for external feed storage
and vehicular access and landscaping with use of the existing general purpose
agricultural building to include for livestock housing.

Decision
APPLICATION REFUSED

[For5 Against 2 Abstain 1]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Windress,
Mrs Burr, Mrs Goodrick, Mrs Frank and Mrs Sanderson declared a personal non
pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. Councillor Cussons declared a personal
and prejudicial interest and left the room.

14/00522/FUL - Land At Middlecave Lodge, Middlecave Road, Malton

14/00522/FUL - Erection of a two bedroom dwelling with attached single garage
with associated landscaping.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED — Subject to conditions as recommended and the
completion of a S106 relating to affordable housing and public open space
contributions.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Mrs Burr declared
a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 23 September 2014

Page 4




90

91

92

14/00762/73A - Land At, Malton Lane, Allerston, Pickering

14/00762/73A - Variation of Condition 05 of approval 13/00420/FUL dated
07.06.2013 by submission of revised elevations plan "New copy 1st Aug 2014".

Decision

APPLICATION REFUSED - Enforcement Authority granted to secure
compliance with the previously approved scheme.

[For 8 Against 2 Abstain 0]

14/00850/ADV - Land At OS Field 6574, Old Malton, Malton

14/00850/ADV - Erection of permanent tubular steel frame for display of non-
illuminated temporary signs for events within Malton and Norton for a period of
five years.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended and for a
period of 3 years and conditions to secure painting of the steel frame; limitation
on advertisement of one event only at any one time and colouration of rear of
signs a darker green colour.

[For 6 Against 3 Abstain]

14/00851/ADV - OS Field 3286, High Hutton, Malton

14/00851/ADV — Erection of permanent tubular steel frame for display of non
illuminated temporary signs for events within Malton and Norton, for a period of
five years.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended and for a
period of 3 years and conditions to secure painting of the steel frame; limitation
on advertisement of one event only at any one time and colouration of rear of
signs a darker green colour.

For 6 Against 3 Abstain 0]

Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 23 September 2014

Page 5




93 14/00865/HOUSE - Glen Gairn, Barugh Lane, Great Barugh, Malton
14/00865/HOUSE - Erection of carport to include installation of biomass boiler
and chimney (Revised details to approval 13/00151/HOUSE dated 25.04.2013)
- part retrospective application.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.
[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 1]
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Maud declared a
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

94 Enforcement Report - Canadian Fields, Nawton

Decision

DEFERRED
[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

95 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
The Chairman informed Members that Site Visits would occur 2 weeks after the
Committee Date that they were decided on.

96 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously
circulated) which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of
Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of Delegated Decisions.

97 Update on Appeal Decisions
Members’ were advised of the following appeal decisions.
APP/Y2736/A/14/2219259 — Land Adjacent to No. 103 Min Street, Ebberston,
Scarborough, YO13 9ND.

Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 23 September 2014

Page 6




APP/Y2736/D/14/2222026 — 4 Maiden Greve, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17
7BE.

APP/Y2736/D/14/2223337 — Rowan Cottage, Great Habton, Malton, North
Yorkshire, YO17 6TU.

Meeting Closed at 8.25pm.

Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 23 September 2014

Page 7



Agenda Iltem 5

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

6
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

7
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

8
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

9
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

10
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 21/10/14

14/00900/MFUL

Mill House Scarborough Road East Knapton Malton North Yorkshire YO17
8JA

Change of use and alteration of farm buildings to form office and small parts
storage, erection of attached office building with three bedroom on-site
managers apartment to first floor together with erection of warehouse building
and workshop building, formation of parking and upgrading of vehicular access
- all works to form a commercial dealership for agricultural equipment.

14/00914/MFUL
Fosters Wold Farm Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8TP
Erection of 2 no. broiler units to house a maximum of 80,000 poultry together

with associated control rooms, boiler house, 6 no. feed bins and area of
hardstanding

14/00613/0UT
Land Off Kirk Balk Lane Claxton

Erection of an agricultural worker's dwelling (site area 0.1ha) (revised details to
refusal 13/00037/OUT dated 31.05.2013).

14/00856/FUL

Norton Bowls Club Bowling Lane Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8EG

Change of use and alteration of part of bowls club building from D2 Use
(Assembly and Leisure) to D1 Use (Non-residential institutions) for use of a
dance school and a pre school playgroup to include parking and dedicated
outdoor play space for the pre-school playgroup.

14/00882/HOUSE
Lilac Cottage Main Street Wombleton York YO62 7RX

Erection of two storey rear extension following demolition of existing single
storey rear extension.

Page 8



APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

11
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

12
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

13
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

14
Application No:

Application Site:

Proposal:

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 21/10/14

14/00883/HOUSE
Nesslyn West End Sheriff Hutton YO60 6SH

Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to the west and north
elevations and entrance porch to the south elevation.

14/00889/HOUSE
Green View Page Lane Wombleton Kirkbymoorside YO62 7SE
Retention of single storey extension to north elevation, boundary wall to east

elevation and external cladding and installation of 15no. solar panels on the
west roofslope and flat roof

14/00909/HOUSE
Newlands 4 St Peters Crescent Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9AN

Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include integral garage with
storage above

14/01039/FUL
Ryedale Swimming Pool Mill Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8DJ

Erection of single storey linked extension to north (front) elevation to form
fitness centre with use of part of adjacent existing changing rooms as a gym

Page 9



Agenda Iltem 6

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING

Item Number: 6

Application No: 14/00900/MFUL

Parish: Scampston Parish Council

Appn. Type: Full Application Major

Applicant: Ryetec Ltd (Mr Mark Harrison)

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of farm buildings to form office and small

parts storage, erection of attached office building with three bedroom on-
site managers apartment to first floor together with erection of warehouse
building and workshop building, formation of parking and upgrading of
vehicular access - all works to form a commercial dealership for
agricultural equipment.

Location: Mill House Scarborough Road East Knapton Malton North Yorkshire
YO17 8JA
Registration Date: 15 August 2014

8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 14 November 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 3 November 2014

Case Officer: Rachel Smith Ext: 323

CONSULTATIONS:

Highways Agency (Leeds) Further views required

Countryside Officer No views received to date

Land Use Planning No views received to date

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No views received to date

Building Conservation Officer No impact on setting of Registered Park and Garden
Parish Council No views received to date

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend Highways Agency to be consulted
Archaeology Section Advise scheme of archaeological mitigation recording

and recommend condition

Neighbour responses: Mr Mark Gregory, Mrs Rosemary Cooper, Antony Holliday,
Mrs Rebecca Nutter,

Mill House is situated on the northern side of the A64 at East Knapton. It originally comprised a
farmhouse and outbuildings set within a 2.6 hectare site. The farmhouse is set back approximately
90m metres from the main road and is accessed via a track. Its most recent use was as a guest house.
Planning permission was granted in November 2010 for alterations and extensions together with the
demolition of the farmhouse to form a 12 bedroom hotel and restaurant. Revised details were
approved in June 2006 to increase the number of rooms to 20.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 10



The relevant conditions were discharged, and worked commenced on site. This included the partial
demolition of the existing farmhouse, and other buildings, together with the concrete base for the new
build aspect of the hotel. Work subsequently ceased and the site has since been sold.

The area is predominantly agricultural, however there are three residential buildings to the east of the
site, one of which was previously associated with a large scaffolding company. It is noted that an
outbuilding associated with a neighbouring dwelling lies on the boundary with the application site.
The access track is well screened by existing mature trees. The existing buildings are visible from the
A64, but partially screened by a mature hedge.

PROPOSAL:

Permission is sought to re-locate a business which sells specialist machinery for farming, forestry and
general amenity use. Permission is sought therefore for:-

e  The change of use and extension of the former farmhouse at Mill House to provide exhibition
space, parts department and offices on the ground floor, together with a three bedroom managers
flat, meeting room, and first floor parts department at first floor level. The extensions will be
rendered at ground floor level with timber boarding above, and a slate roof.

e  Erection of workshop to the rear of the above mentioned building. It will have a footprint of 15m
by 36m with a ridge height of 8.4m It will be constructed from steel sheeting above a 2metre
high plinth and a fibre cement roof

e  Erection of warehouse at right angles to the workshop. It will have a footprint 25m by 42m, with
a ridge height of 9.7m. It will also be constructed from steel sheeting above a concrete plinth
under a fibre cement roof. This building will be adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site where
it abuts the former commercial scaffolding business.

e The area between the buildings will be used as secure external storage.

e The plans also show a planting strip to the rear of the neighbouring domestic property, together
with parking for 14 vehicle.

The supporting statement also states that space is required where machines can be demonstrated to
members of the public.

HISTORY:
1999: Permission granted for demolition of dwelling and change of use of barns to B1, B2 and B8
2003: Permission granted for change of use of agricultural building to bed and breakfast

2010 Permission granted for the change of use and demolition of former farmhouse and barns to form
a 12 bedroom hotel, together with managers accommodation and leisure facilities

2011: Revised details approved to increase bedrooms to 20
POLICY:

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 11



Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP1 - General Location of development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distribution of employment Land and premises
Policy SP9 - The Land Based and Rural Economy

Policy SP10 - Physical Infrastructure

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

APPRAISAL:

The main issues in the consideration of the application are:-

e  principle of the use in this location;

®  access;

e appropriateness of design;

e impact of development on existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers;
e landscape considerations;

e ecology; and

e archaeology.

Principle of use

Both local and national policy provides support for businesses that benefit the local economy.
Section 3 Para 28 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), states:

28. Planning policies should support economic growth in rural areas in order to create jobs and
prosperity by taking a positive approach to sustainable new development. To promote a strong rural
economy, local and neighbourhood plans should:

ee support the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business and enterprise in rural
areas, both through conversion of existing buildings and well designed new buildings;

ee promote the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural
businesses;

e e support sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments that benefit businesses in rural areas,
communities and visitors, and which respect the character of the countryside. This should include
supporting the provision and expansion of tourist and visitor facilities in appropriate locations where

identified needs are not met by existing facilities in rural service centres; and

e e promote the retention and development of local services and community facilities in villages, such
as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship.

In relation to the Ryedale Plan —Local Plan Strategy, (Ryedale Plan), Policy SP 6- Delivery and
Distribution of Employment/industrial Land and Premises is particularly relevant:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 12



SP6 Delivery and Distribution of Employment/Industrial Land and Premises Delivery New land and
buildings for employment will be supported from the following sources in the following locations:
Malton and Norton; Pickering; Kirkbymoorside; Helmsley Employment land allocations; conversion
of existing buildings for employment purposes; expansion land/sites for major employers/established
businesses Service Villages and other Villages Small-scale sites in and adjacent to Development
Limits (coming forward as ‘windfall’ development); conversion of buildings within and outside of
Development Limits for employment uses and rural diversification; expansion land/sites for major
employers/ established businesses Wider Open Countryside Expansion land for existing major
employers/ established businesses; small scale conversion of existing buildings or provision of new
buildings to support appropriate rural economic activity in line with the provisions of Policy SP9

The following extract from Policy SP 9 is also particularly relevant to this application:
SP9 The Land-Based and Rural Economy
Ryedale’s land based economy will be sustained and diversified with support for:

e New buildings that are necessary to support land based activity and a working countryside,
including for farming, forestry and equine purposes.

The applicant’s business is related to agriculture, and needs to be located on a site where there is good
access to major transport routes. There is also a requirement for enough space to enable large
machinery to be demonstrated when required. It is considered that few opportunities exist within or
adjacent to existing employment areas due to their restricted site area.

In relation to the domestic element of the development, members will be aware that policy in the
Ryedale Plan does not support new residential development unless it has been demonstrated that there
is an essential need for an agricultural worker to live on site, or if it is a barn conversion. In this case,
the site has, until recently, included a farmhouse, and indeed the hotel development included
managers accommodation. As such the development will not result in a new residential unit being
created on the premises. Should planning permission be granted however, it is considered that the
occupation of the flat should be restricted to the site manager. It is therefore considered that the
principle of the proposed use is in accordance with both local and national policy, subject to other
material considerations being satisfied.

Access

The existing access to the site is essentially a single track with no passing places. When the
application for the hotel was approved, it was accompanied by plans which included improvements to
the access. This included the upgrading of the junction with the A64T, and the increase in the width of
the track to 5m, together with improvements to drainage. The submitted plans for the current
application state that the highway improvements previously approved will be carried out. The
Highways Agency has not objected to the development, nor have they recommended conditions.
However it is considered that the submitted plans should be revised to include details of the proposed
highway improvements.

It is also noted that a letter of objection received from a neighbouring occupier raises concerns that the
A64 regularly floods in this area during heavy rain, and has resulted in a number of accidents. Their
comments have been forwarded to the Highways Agency, and Members will be updated with their
response at the Committee meeting.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 13



Impact of development on existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers

The site lies within a predominantly agricultural area. Nevertheless there are two neighbouring
dwellings immediately adjacent to the site, with a further two dwellings to their east. It is noted
however that Mill Barn, which lies adjacent to the eastern boundary with the site, was itself approved
as subordinate residential accommodation in connection with a business and industrial use on the site
which was most recently used as a scaffolding yard. Responses from the occupiers of four
neighbouring occupiers have been received in relation to the application. Their full responses are
available to view on the public website, however, their main comments are as follows;

e The workshop is too close to residential properties. At a minimum there needs to be a restriction
to operation during normal office hours.

The site will require lighting which will cause light pollution

The secure yard is still too close to residential properties and the equipment may be noisy

The workshop could be a dusty environment and there should be restrictions on emissions

During harvest there may be urgent need for repairs to equipment, and this should be controlled.
The A64 has very heavy traffic especially in summer. Visibility of the entrance needs to be
carefully considered

Require details of both foul and surface water drainage

e The car park should be re-located to reduce disturbance.

One letter has also stated that the proposal is an over development of a green field site, and that the
warehouse will be visible and intrusive to the neighbouring property. Furthermore the power supply
will not be inadequate.

The site was previously occupied by a farm house with associated agricultural buildings. This use
could have continued, and would itself generate noise associated with the operation of tractors and
machinery etc. It is also noted that the location of the site adjacent to the trunk road results in higher
background noise levels than occurs in many rural area. In addition to this, the rear part of the
neighbouring site was only approved as subordinate residential use in connection with the occupation
of associated buildings for B1, B2 and B8 uses (business, warehouse and industrial). Nevertheless the
proposed use is likely to be more intensive than an agricultural use, and as such, the appropriateness
of the use in this location is a key consideration. The applicants have demonstrated that they require a
larger site than could readily be accommodated on an industrial estate. They have also advised that
much of their work involves transporting machinery to both potential clients, and to agricultural
shows and exhibitions. In view of this, a location close to the A64 is particularly important. It is also
noted that permission is not sought for any processing on site. The machinery will only be operated
for demonstration purposes to potential customers.

It is considered that the following are the main aspects of the proposed development that have the
potential to generate noise;

e  Vehicular movements, including the use of lorries and tractors
e Repair and assembly of agricultural/industrial equipment in the workshop
e  Demonstration of machinery

The case officer has attended the site with the Councils Environmental Health officer to assess the
likely impact of the development on neighbouring residential amenity. The applicant took a tractor to
the site together with what is considered to be the noisiest piece of machinery which slices and splits
timber. This was operated during the meeting. The Council’s Environmental Health Officer is
satisfied that subject to an agreement regarding appropriate mitigation the operations on the site
would not have a significant impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers. Such
mitigation is likely to include:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 14



e Operations on the site would be restricted to 7.30am until 6pm Monday to Friday and
Saturdays 7.30am until 2pm.

e Demonstrations of machinery restricted to a limited number of hours per week. With the
exception of two exhibition days.

e A set location for the demonstration of most equipment to be identified away from
neighbouring residences. The exception to this would be grass cutting equipment which will
operate within restricted hours to the front of the site.

All repairs and assembly of machinery to take place in the workshop with doors closed.
Agreed location for any generator/ extraction unit.

® Any lorries needing to enter or leave the site outside office hours will be parked away from

neighbouring residences.

In relation to comments regarding the impact of the warehouse building, this will be situated beyond
the domestic curtilage of the neighbours dwelling. Furthermore changes in levels between the
properties, and their relationship on site, are such that it is not considered that the development will
have a significant adverse impact on their amenities by virtue of overbearing size or loss of light.

Accordingly it is considered that subject to appropriate mitigation, and taking into account the
approved uses on the neighbouring site, together with background noise from the A64T, the proposed
development will not have a significant adverse impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring
occupiers.

Design

The development comprises a large extension to the side of the former farmhouse, together with the
erection of two agricultural/industrial style buildings. The site is well screened by a plantation of trees
from the north and west of the site, with partial screening from the south and west of the site. There is
potential to view the proposed development from public footpaths on raised ground further to the
south. However it is considered that from this location its appearance will not be dissimilar to a
typical farm holding which incorporates a dwelling and modern agricultural buildings. The proposal
will also provide additional planting incorporating native species. There are some concerns regarding
the design and materials of the frontage building; however it is considered that these can be
satisfactorily addressed. The use of more traditional bricks will also improve the appearance of the
building.

The workshop and warehouse buildings are large, and will be visible whilst travelling along the A64.
This will essentially be a glimpsed view, and the existing plantation to the west, will help reduce the
impact of the buildings. The use of dark cladding would also help minimise their impact. A letter of
objection has been received from a neighbouring occupier on the basis that the proposal will result in
the overdevelopment of a green field site, and the large warehouse building will be visible and
intrusive to the neighbouring property. In relation to the scale of the development on a greenfield site,
it is considered that the economic benefits to the local economy outweigh the perceived harm, given
the previous use of the site for agricultural purposes, and potential for agricultural buildings to be
sited there. The ability of neighbouring occupiers to view the building, is not in itself reason to refuse
planning permission. Furthermore the nearest residential property to the proposed warehouse was
itself only granted consent in association with a B1, B2 and B8 use of their site. The buildings on the
application site will closely grouped together, and therefore will be similar to a typical farmstead in
the countryside.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 15



Landscaping

As stated previously, the western and northern boundaries of the site are well screened by mature
planting. There is also a mature hedge to the front of the site where it bounds the A64, with further
mature trees on part of the boundary with Mill House. The proposals include a belt of new planting
alongside that part of the site which forms the boundary with Mill Barn. It is recommended that any
approval is conditioned to require a survey of the existing trees on the site, together with a detailed
landscaping scheme.

Ecology

The application is accompanied by an extended Phase 1 habitat survey dated May 14™. The report
states that, subject to any tree removal being undertaken outside the bird nesting season, further bird
surveys are not required. In relation to bats which affects the now partially demolished farmhouse, the
submitted ecological report details that only one daytime survey has been undertaken. The comments
of the Council’s Countryside Officer are awaited, and members will be updated at their meeting.

Archaeology

The proposed site lies within an area of archaeological interest. In the immediate vicinity of the site,
the Historic Environment Record contains evidence of a number of prehistoric features including ring
ditches, round barrows and enclosures. Therefore there is potential for the proposed development to
disturb and/destroy archaeological features. A written scheme of investigation was approved under the
previous application, however County Archaeology has advised that a scheme of archaeological
mitigation recording is undertaken in response to the ground disturbing works associated with the
current application. Accordingly, it is recommended that appropriate archaeological conditions are
imposed on any approval on the site.

Conclusion

It is considered that the principle of the development is acceptable in this location, and indeed
business and industrial uses have previously been approved on this site in conjunction with the
neighbouring site. Subject to some revisions to the design, and the submission of a detailed
landscaping scheme, it is not considered that the development will have a significant adverse impact
on the character of the area. Ecological issues are still outstanding, and the final views of the
Highways Agency are awaited. In relation to the impact of the development on neighbouring
occupiers, it is considered that any noise and/disturbance can be mitigated by detailed conditions
which restrict hours of operation, and the location of machinery on site. Accordingly the
recommendation is one of approval with delegated Authority to the Head of Planning once the
detailed mitigation outlined above is provided, and subject to the resolution of ecological
considerations.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the application to be delegated to the Head of
Planning & Housing subject to the views of outstanding
consultees and the satisfactory resolution of noise mitigation
conditions

1 Full list of conditions to follow

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 16



Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE

21 October 2014

Page 17



Page 18



EXISTING
PLANTING

EXISTING
woop

(Ho chang
proposed]

EXISTING
wooeo

i (Na change
;L propl!il)’
ra—

ill-

5: B RK
ROOF: WETAL SHEETING

I:)tl!'zI!NG

nhzn
rrn'llélf

Gire
e _t‘!_Lunlaw

\_W:dwl)\:‘_:;::;:_“ .
i

Exisring”
___ PLAKTING

prnnscdi
Aot

EXISTING
““"—-v-—_:-:._m_l’_LANTlNﬁ

=
= &
= =
T« IE
o ==
ol o
O (S
Zul L TE]
= =
S =
= =
= e i L=
= =
LT u [y 8]
ul_y R -«
= ] { ] H D frag D D
| J -
er e,

TAINED SECURE
oD

PR

DRAWING 01 EXI©TING ¢ PROPOSED SITE PLANS

REVISION C  Seprember 2014
David Ward Architectural Ltd 01053 ©9% 229

CUMMERCIAL DE!\LER%HIP. FOR AGR1CLTURAL EGU\PMENT $ DWELLING .
at MILL HOUSE FARM, EAST KNAPTON, MALTON, Y017 BJA for RYETEQ LIMITEEI

<

davidwardD®Aa@bti m—ernehLam—%_._m

SCALE 1:1000

EXISTING BUILDING DETAILS SCALE 1:250

T

-

L]
5“’:51’;’"”"‘

A
r(“J,"g;';‘
Eargy By

GROUND FLOGR PLAN

A

AFPFROVED
IMPROVED
HIGHWAY
SJURCTION
t ACCESS
ROAD

EXIGTING 9ITE PLAN

AFFROVED

PROPOGED oITE PLAN

RETAINED FARM BUILDING DETAIL®

Page 19



ﬁ
-
“j‘

I AT N Y Oo—— -
e S A ‘\J‘\-\
H ol /\3 I’rrﬂimtlg Pﬂpprors,( F’A{l / / / / |
reafment
NOTES: (I / ///////
SITE AREA: 24,090 n?

/////////

RETAINED FARM BUILDINGS
GROUND FLOOR: 2137 m? ;
FIRST FLOOR: 219 m?
TOTAL AREA: 430 m?

PROPOSED AREAS:

FPARTS DEFARTHENT I
GEOU"D FLOOR: 40 m? J’

FIRST FLOOR: 40 m? o
TOTAL AREA: 180 m*  (; ht
{all tn conversion} I

OFFICE

GROUND FLOOR: 260 m'
FIRGT FLOOR: |10 m?
TOTAL AREA 370 m?

(af which 220 m* Is convprsien, ’Jf

T
£
\.\ —/ﬂ

ans 190 m* is new build)

DWELLING LXISTING
FIRST FLOOR: %07 Woop
NEW MAINTENANCE BLIIL
TOTAL AREA: D40

HEV WAREHOUSE BUILDIfG
1,0

{ne changel Lt

TOTAL AREA:

OFFICE CAR PARKING T B CARS
DWELLING ¢ OVERSPILLS CAR FARK FOR 13 CARS
REEN FLANTING
sundary)
n, 20% Blackthern, 103 Hazel,
rab & 0% Bullace. All planted as
gru tubes?|.Tm cenkbres.
any Falling plants Fo be replfced
af buildings. :

SECURE
EXTENAL
5TORAGE

200m? NATIVE TREE
(shown shaded on east!
Comprising: 90%Hawth
10% Dograse, FIWIld
30/40cm Fransplants !
All planted spring 2
Ho planking within 2

CORVE

Im hlph steel fence

DF EXIHTING 2
STOREY| FARM
BUILDI ¥

T Fl

WITH
ART
OVtR ORE

I

y formed)

I EXISTING
i wooo

(no change)

Mprovements
Iready apprav

EXISTING
FLANTING

APFROVED ¢t IMPLIMENTED
(10/0104T/WFUL)

LANDSCAPE SCHEME [RTTUDTHE
EARTH BUND

=,
i |
i 1
ok
’

. i FROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF FARMHOUSE ¢ FARM BUILPINGS o become

5 W L _ExisTiNG COMMERCIAL DEALERSHIP FOR AGRICLTURAL EQUIPMENT § DWELLING
= : i TEE, ot MILL HOUSE FARM, EAST KNAPTON, MALTON, YOI7 gUA

Gt ~—=-e, B S ==y o RYETEG :L%Lwéw

Trark PPROVED Rasna e DR AN NG 62 TETREAN, SCALE 1:500

Koad —
— Hfﬁ B T KEVISIONAL. GepFamber- 0w

LT?’m:ﬁ 6‘3&«,22@ _GavidwardSBA€bE internst.cor



Parks
Department

Otfice GROUND FLOOR PLAN
IS
LEK‘II_IJPE CI Lj
[l
e = - PROPOSED MATERIALS:
RENQVATION:
ROOF: GLAY FANTILES
WALLS: BRICKWORR
TIUBER WINDOWS ¢ DOORS
NEW BUILD:
o ROQF: CLAY FANTILES
WALLS: CEDAR HORIZONTAL BOARDING
RENDERED BLOCKWORK
new TIMBLR WINDOWS ¢ DOORS
window
===—==== - Pacts _____]
i Department
| o o & -— T
= FIRGT FLOOR PLAN
athf Bedroom | Bedroom 2
Sitking R
Roem —rl)mm\r__
‘ Ite }Eau ?;ﬁru- 3 H
rudy
| @& o,
i A et e
REN

NEW BUILD (on existing foundations)

WEST ELEVATION

90UTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF FARMHOUSE & FARM BUILDINGS to become
COMMERCIAL DEALERSHIP FOR AGRICLTURAL EQUIFMENT & DWELLING ———

ab MILL HOUSE FARM, EAST KNAPTON, MALTON, YOIT7 8JA for RYETEC LIMITED T
DRAWING 0D OFFICE BUILDING ¢ DWELLING DETAILS 9SCALE 11200 | £
REVISION C Seprember 2014 {’ i
David Ward Architecrural Ltd 01693 b90% 229 davidwardf@qebrin{-ernel—.cuT—;

Page 21



MATERIALS:
ROOF: FIBRE CEMENT SHEETING
108 ROOFLIGHTS
. WALLS: CONCRETE DADO WALL (TO Zm)
£ STEEL SHEETING
E DOORS: GECTIONAL ROLLER SHUTTER

15000

6000

L e I i B i
| . . . .
b 36000

] L] [1] ] 1 1
—— ———
———| —
1 1 (I I| ] (| L]
=

(o]

=

=

=

wh

2

=

o

(=)

=z

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF FARMHOUSE ¢ FARM BUILDINGS to become
COMMERCIAL DEALERSHIP FOR AGRICLTURAL EQUIPMENT ¢ DWELLING

at MILL HOUSE FARM, EAST KNAPTON, MALTON, YOI7 8JA for RYETEC LIMITED

DRAWING 06 MAINTENANCE BUILDING DETAIL® SCALE 1:200

REVISION C

Seprember 2014

David Ward Architecrural L+d 01693 658 229 davidwardS®9@btinkerner.com

Page 22

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

WEST ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

@



NY T4 Y0014 dNNO¥9

NOIL¥AITI HLNOG

NOILYAZT3 HLIMON

42000

_
: 7 B
| |
T o] A AR [ERN 0 _
_E 7 ,
R L S S E 00 I 0-0
|
[
o) L] AR R OO 0
B HH )
] I )il Ui a0 SRk
L (L] ]
Lo i ] BN L 0|
| |
£ 7 i
bomeed L S T BEE 0 0
=] ..Jn : 7 1 -
boia ] R i m L 0.
N __ .
| oo
’ LLLS
s ) T

000sz

NOILY AT LoaM

NCIL¥A3T3 1ovd

108 ROOFLIGHTS
WALLG: CONGRETE DADO WALL (T0 Zm)
DOORS: BECTIONAL ROLLER SHUTTER

ROOF: FIBRE CEMENT SHEETING

MATERIAL5:

PROFOSED CHANGE OF USE OF FARMHOUSE ¢ FARM BUILDINGS to become
COMMERCIAL DEALERSHIP FOR AGRICLTURAL EQUIPMENT ¢ DWELLING

[:200

at MILL HOUSE FARM, EAST KNAPTON, MALTON, YOI7 %JA for RYETEC LIMITED
DRAWING 07 WAREHOUSE BUILDING DETAILS 9CALE

REVISION C  Seprember 2014

davidwardTBA@btinternek.cam

David Ward Architectural Ltd 018693 6958 224

Page 23



ﬁﬂPOH:g

' AREHOUSE
i ! BUILDING
i v

) = % - # | B i
g RETAINED
,) FLANTH{G
7 £ : E P o o E i = Z
R RCE Re Lo | ! ! o i b |2
_;-"-jy ! [ [ wd bzt [ -t
o
;J i r___i? fls ] T T T | e T
S % %8 AN AN
A I
b . | R i
j N
Fd |rfhs e s
pratp iy PROPOSED ——
! N WORKSHOP_ _
BUILDING
—
I I SECURE
; YARD
__[l 1 AREA
IA__LIT
:: %\\\ 5
QFFICE B
CAR
FARK
@ OFFICE  f§emm oo
ENTRANCE | _ .
—— '
OFfice i % -
PROPOSED LA : a5
OFFICE WITH
DWELLING OYER 4
— DWELLING V T |
~ ENTRANCE
. PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF FARMHOUSE ¢ FA 5 to hecame COMMERCIAL IDEALERGHIP FOR
AGRICLTURAL EQUIPMENT ¢ DWELLING a+ MILL HOUSE FARM, EAST KNAPTON, MALTON, YO|7 9 for RYETEC (L
DRAWING 03 DETAILED SITE PLAN SCALE 1:250 REVISION C September 2014 . s
T David d Architectural L¥d 010D 699 229 davidwardD99€bkinkernek.com
SN B P HE e

Page 24




y
_..mﬂl”
4 il
il
(il
\
oo
HEH] N
[0 0
7
o a
U
oo il
O -
L1171 0
l [ =
5 m ¢
Ll 00 O
Il
L] © 0
[ o
pJI |
i o
5
g = 0 z
[ < <
< > B [
i oo - 3
2 z g
- e
: : -
@ ao z = H
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF FARMHOUSE ¢ FARM BUILDINGS to bicomle
COMMERCIAL DEALERSHIP FOR AGRICLTURAL EQUIPMENT ¢ PWELLING
at MILL HOUSE FARM, EASGT KNAPTON, MALTON, YOI7 &JA\ for RYETEQ LIMITED
DRAWING 04 SITE CONTEXT ELEVATIONS SCALE 1:2%0 A,
REVISION € September 2014 A
David Ward Architectural Ltd 016953 658 27 dgvidw A€btinkernet.¢om
Page2s5

EAST ELEVATION




DESIGN & ACCESS STATEMENT page 1 of 4

To accompany

FULL PLANNING APPLICATION:

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE of FORMER FARMHOUSE & FARM BUILDINGS
to become COMMERCIAL DEALERSHIP for AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT &
DWELLING at MILL HOUSE, EAST KNAPTON, MALTON, YO17 8JA

for RYETEC LTD.

BACKGROUND SITUATION. Ryetec Ltd is a local Ryedale firm that was established by
Mark Harrison 21 years ago as an offshoot of the established Harrison Hire business which in
turn was established 45 years ago. Ryetec sell specialist machinery for farming, forestry and
general amenity use and have recently seen very rapid growth especially in specialist
agricultural and lumber processing equipment as the use of wood as a primary domestic
heating source has dramatically expanded over the last few years. The business is currently
located on a shared and congested site (with Harrison Hire) in the middle of Settrington
Village. The physical limits and awkward shape of the current site have become a limiting
factor on the growth of the business, the success of which also depends on being able to
demonstrate the equipment on site to prospective customers, An opportunity to move arose
when a large site at Mill House, East Knapton was offered as a distressed sale when the
previous owner became insolvent. In 2010 this previous owner had obtained permission to
change the use of the farm house and farm buildings to become a hotel, restaurant, leisure
complex and managers flat and to improve the junction with the A64 trunk road. An addition
planning approval was granted to further intensify this initial approval in 2011. Work had
only just started, principally with regard to demolitions, site levelling and foundations, when
the receivers were called in and the site was subsequently offered for sale. After marketing
the site for more than a year there was zero interest and it was decided to take the property to
auction where it failed to reach the reserve at two previous auctions, the third attempt was in
April of this year, Mark Harrison took the precaution of speaking in outline terms with
Ryedale Planners and Forward Planners to gain a degree of comfort that there was unlikely to
be any great difficulties gaining permission to make the site the new home for his expanding
business prior to purchasing the site which he subsequently did at auction the week after the
enquiry having satisfied himself that RDC would be sympathetic to his proposals.

The Mill House site is in the open countryside and extends to 24,050 square metres. The farm
buildings were/are set in the middle of the site some 00 metres back from the trunk road on
ground which is gradually sloping down away from the road. The building line (such as it is}
for Mill Farm and its two adjeining neighbours to the east is along this line. The vendor has
demolished all the buildings on the site with the exception of a 2 storey barn, footprint 215
square metres, which was to be incorporated within the hotel design. In addition the
foundations and floor slab for part of the hotel complex had been laid together with a
compacted sub-base and kerbs for in site roadways and parking areas. This current
application makes use of all this unfinished work and by implication this has informed the
proposed overall layout of the site. There is no immediate plan to develop in front of the
building line and the landscape plan approved as part of the hotel scheme and as partly
implemented on site will be carried forwards with the new use and application. It is the
intention of the applicant that the existing approved (but as yet unimplemented) vehicular
access to the site will be kept as already designed and approved.

As stated above the Ryetec business is currently located in the middle of Settrington in a set
of converted farm buildings and sheds. The nature of the activity of the business, the need to
demonstrate equipment on site and store larger items outside (with consequent security and
disruption implications) all mitigate against the current location and for the new location. In
addition any further expansion on the existing site is not possible due to the physical

Cont... page 2

Page 26



DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT.....cont. page 2 of 4

constraints of the site and this is proving a limiting factor on the expansion of the business
and the desire to expand the workforce. The remote location of the application site will allow
the business to grow unfettered by space constraints and without causing disruption to
neighbours and will consequently improve the amenity for Settrington residents.
PROPOSAL. The application is for the conversion of the remaining building left on the
site to become part office and part small parts storage for the commercial enterprise and for
the development of a ground floor office building on existing foundations and floor slab
attached to this existing two storey building. It is proposed that a second storey of this
proposed new build is to become a residential apartment for an on-site manager who will be
responsible for security. To the rear two new industrial buildings are proposed around the
partially completed external hard standing area. To the west a detached steel framed storage
building is positioned parallel to the east boundary. The space behind this building, together
with the blank cast boundary wall, will form two sides of a proposed secure external storage
area. To the north a larger detached steel framed storage building is proposed. The existing
approved highway junction and site road improvements are also used in the new scheme as
are the allocated and partly made up car parking areas. This together with the existing
approved site landscaping scheme (including an earth bund and planting between the
highway and the site) are also adopted as part of the current proposals.

PLANNING HISTORY. The previous applications for this site 10/01047/MFUL - 26 Nov
2010 and 11/00194/MFUL — 13 June 2011 were for the part demolitions and change of use of
the existing farm house and farm buildings and the formation of a hotel and leisure complex
with on-site manager’s residential accommodation together with landscaping and highway
junction improvements. This venture floundered when only partly implemented. Work had
started on site and consequently these approvals are still current. The applicant bought the
site at auction following a brief pre-application discussion with Gill Thompson and Rachel
Smith (both also involved in the initial hotel applications). For the purposes of this
application [ have assumed (on advice from RDC}) that this application is for change of use
from the previous farm and farmhouse use rather than from the approved and partly
implemented hotel use.

POLICY BACKGROUND. The recently adopted Local Plan Strategy forms the policy
background to the proposed scheme. The following policies are relevant:

Policy SP6: Delivery and Distribution of Employment/Industrial Land and Premises — the
site is in the wider open countryside and the policy supports appropriate rural economic
activity. The proposed agricultural commercial use is a perfect fit with these aspirations.
Policy SP9: The Land Based & Rural Economy — supports the provision of new buildings to
support farming and forestry and promotes the rural skills of woodland management.

Policy SP14: Biodiversity — The site is subject to an extensive landscape plan including the
planning of native species and an earth bund forming a visual separation between to
development on the site and the trunk road.

Policy SP16: Design - requires that new buildings should respect local distinctiveness and
that the materials, details and form of the development should respect the context of the
surroundings. The conversion of the existing retained building on site and the extension to
this forming the new office and residential accommeodation are achieved in a sympathetic
manner. The new portal shed buildings appear as modern agricultural buildings in terms of
scale, materials and design. The tight grouping of the buildings minimises the overall impact
of the development in the countryside.

Policy SP18: Renewable & Low carbon Energy — The office incorporates solar thermal water
heating, the large sheds are unheated.

Cont... page 3

Page 27



DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT.....cont. page 3 of 4

Policy SP19: Sustainable Development — The proposals uses the existing foundation and
drainage work already implemented on the site as the basis for the new buildings. The
business is based on the sale of equipment which promotes a more sustainable future.

Policy SP20: Generic Development Management Issues — restates these requirements.

All the various relevant parts of these policies have been considered in generating the
proposals. NPPF sections 1 & 3 are relevant in that the proposals will boost employment in
the area and have a positive effect on the wider rural economy,

USE. The use of the proposed development is to be a commercial dealership for
agricultural equipment together with a single dwelling for a site manager.

(This is not a new dwelling - there has always been a permeant dwelling on the site, initially
the farm house and subsequently through approvals 10/01047/MFUL - 26 Nov 2010 and
11/00194/MFUL — 13 June 2011 a manager’s flat in association with the hotel business. )
AMOUNT OF DEVELOPMENT. The floor area of the existing retained brick farm
building is 450square metres and the footprint of the foundation and floor slab left as a
consequence of the failed hotel venture is 260 square metres. It is proposed to develop a two
storey building (as originally approved) on the unused floor slab. These two elements
combined will form a 150 square metre dwelling in the first floor of the new build element
and the ground floor of the new build element and part of the converted building will yield a
370 square metres office and the balance of the conversion is to become a 180 square metre
small parts storage area for the business. In addition two single storey new portal framed
steel warehouse type buildings are also proposed. The first orientated north south is 540
square metres, the second orientated east west is 1,050 square metres. In addition car parking
for 21 vehicles is proposed in two parking areas and together with a vehicular hard standing
area and secure external equipment storage area is also propesed. The improvements to the
highway junction and on site landscaping are already approved as a consequence of the
previous current approvals 10/01047/MFUL 26.11. 2010 & 11/00194/MFUL 13.06. 2011.
The total amount of floor area development on site is 15% less than previously approved.
SCALE PERAMETERS. The retained brick agricultural building is almost the tallest
building on site taking into account the falling away of the ground level into the site to the
north ( 5 metres over the depth of the site). This two storey brick building is 15.5 x 15
metres, 5 metres to the eaves and 7.8 metres to the apex. The proposed new extension to this
building forms the office (at ground floor level) and dwelling (at first floor level). This two
storey brick and timber clad building is 18.5 x 8.1 metres, 5 metres to the eaves and 7.8
metres to the apex. The smaller of the two new industrial building is 15 x 35 metres on plan,
5.9 metres to the eaves and 8 metres to the apex. The larger of the two new industrial
building is 25 x 42 metres on plan, 5.9 metres to the eaves and 8 metres to the apex.
LAYOUT & DESIGN. As has already been mentioned the existing foundations, floor slab
and road and vehicular hard standing areas from the failed hotel scheme form the basis for
the site organisation of the proposed scheme together with the integration and re-use of the
remaining building on the site. This has resulted in a tight cluster grouping around the central
hard standing area. The smaller new industrial shed is carefully position so as to from a
barrier (visual, acoustic and security) to the blank high boundary wall of the property to the
east. This permits the formation of a secure external storage area with the minimum of 2
meter high security fencing. The second larger industrial building is located behind all the
rest at the rear and lower part of the site. The buildings form a tight cluster and is inward
looking onto the central hard standing area. The design is kept as simple and unpretentious as
possible whilst appearing to be agricultural in nature. Already approved landscaping between
the development and the trunk road will obscure the development from the highway.

Cont... page 4

Page 28



DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT.....cont. page 4 of 4

APPEARANCE. The materials used in the proposed new office and dwelling are
complimentary to those of the existing host building to which it is attached. The design in
simple and horizontal in feel being built of rendered blockwork at ground floor level with
horizontal timber cladding at first floor level. (as a nod to the principle activity of the
business) The hipped roof is clad in clay pantiles and the roofs sweeps down to first floor
level to signify the the office and dwelling entrances which are on opposite sides of the
building thus keeping the uses and their external amenity spaces separate.

The industrial shed buildings are of simple pitched design mimicking agricultural sheds with
fibre cement roof and corrugated steel sheet sides over block dado walls with roller shutter
doors. The access road is tarmacked and the on-site roads and hard standing areas of
compacted crushed stone.

EMPLOYMENT LEVELS & ON-SITE ACTIVITES. The growth of the business is
currently inhibited by the constraints of the site it currently oceupies in Settrington where
currently 8 people are employed on site. This new facility would allow them to immediately
increase this number by 2 people to 10 full time employees on site. Mr Harrison anticipates
at current growth rates that the business could reasonably anticipate growing by 2 employees
per vear for the next 5 years. The hours of business conform to reasonable national standards.
The business sells specialist machinery for farming and forestry and amenity machinery to
clients all over the UK. They require good road links for easy access, yard space for loading
and unloading large machinery, workshop space for maintenance, service and repair, storage
for plant and spares and most importantly external areas where the machines can be
demonstrated to potential clients — yard space where timber processing machines can be run
and demonstrated and grass surfaces, from fine turf to field pasture, where specialist grass
cutting machinery can be demonstrated. These are all agricultural type processes similar to
those that would have prevalent on the land were it to have remained a farm.

An appended Transport Assessment is appended to this statement which shows a great
reduction (75%) in the projected traffic level for the application use over the propesed hotel
use. There will be a degree of HGV vehicular movements which the hotel would not
generate, these are itemized in the Transport Assessment and are certainly less that the initial
farm use would generate. The approved Travel Plan for the hotel use is still relevant, it is
proposed to adopt in full the consequential highway junction improvements which flowed
from this more intensive leisure complex use as part of the current proposals.

ACCESS. The means of access to the site remains unaltered from the previous approved
scheme which the applicant will implement in full. Within the site there is ample parking
and turning areas separated for the residential and business uses.

CONTEXT & LANDSCAPE. The site slopes down to the north away from the trunk road
and the there is no proposed development within 100 meters of the highway. The previousty
approved landscape scheme, which called for an earth bund parallel to the truck road has
already been implemented. The wooded area to the west boundary is retained and screen
planting along the bund will be implemented as already approved. The impact on the
landscape is minimal.

ECOLOGY, ENVIRONMENTAL & FLOODING. There are no ecology issues
associated with the proposed development. A recently completed bat survey accompanies the
application and the limited mitigation required is included in the proposals. There are no
flooding issues relating to the site, the free draining sandy land is perfect for percolation of
ground waters. The previously approved hotel scheme included a foul water treatment plant
and the proposed new use will generate less than 10% of this approved volume of foul waste.
The proposed dwelling and offices will be heated by oil with solar thermal backup hot water
generation. The sheds are not heated.

David Ward. 04 AUGUST 2014.

Page 29



Agenda ltem 7

Item Number: 7

Application No: 14/00914/MFUL

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council

Appn. Type: Full Application Major

Applicant: Messrs W D Stephens

Proposal: Erection of 2 no. broiler units to house a maximum of 80,000 poultry

together with associated control rooms, boiler house, 6 no. feed bins and
area of hardstanding
Location: Fosters Wold Farm Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8TP

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 19 November 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 8 October 2014

Case Officer: Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332
CONSULTATIONS:

Archaeology Section Recommends conditions
Parish Council No objections or comments
Highways North Yorkshire No objection
Environmental Health Officer No views received to date
Land Use Planning No comments required

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objections but information supplied

Neighbour responses: None

Fosters Wold Farm is an existing farm holding situated approximately 3km north of Weaverthorpe.
As identified in the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy, the site is located within open countryside and the
Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape Value.

The site consists of the existing farmhouse and three larger agricultural buildings. The site is very well
screened by an existing belt of trees surrounding the site. Members are referred to the appendix of this
report which shows a birds eye image of the site and its surroundings.

PROPOSAL:

This proposal seeks planning permission for the erection of a two broiler units (total 80,000 birds)
together with associated control rooms, boiler house, 6 no. feed bins and an area of hardstanding.

The proposed broiler units would measure 91.436m x 24.382m reaching 2.6m high at eaves level and
5.35m at ridge height. The units are to be sited parallel to each other with a linked 10m x 6m boiler
house. The buildings would be of a dual-pitched design clad with polyester coated steel profile
sheeting for the walls (Van Dyke Brown) and for the roof (Goosewing Grey). Each building
accommodates a control room and store attached to the southern elevation.

This application includes a detailed Design and Access Statement and report assessing the impact of
odour emitted from the development.

Members will note that Officers have considered whether this proposal forms an EIA Development.
At 80,000 broilers, the number of birds is below the threshold identified in Schedule 1 of the 2011
Regulations. The development does however meet the relevant thresholds identified within Schedule
2 of the 2011 Regulations.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 30



Nevertheless, because the site is not located within a sensitive area and does not result in any
significant environmental impacts in terms of highways, noise, odour and landscape, the proposal is
not therefore considered to form EIA Development and a Environmental Statement is not required.
HISTORY:

None of relevance.

POLICY:

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
Planning Practise Guidance

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP9 - Land-Based and Rural Economy

Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP13 - Landscapes

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

APPRAISAL:

The proposal is an agricultural development situated in the countryside and located in close proximity
to the existing farm and farm buildings. The principle of the development is therefore acceptable
subject to other considerations.

The design and access statement provides justification for the location of the development by stating
“The site selected is considered to be the most appropriate location within the applicants land
holding for the development of the poultry unit, and is accessible through the existing farmstead, and
screened from public vantage points by existing agricultural buildings and mature woodland.”

In terms of the siting and landscape impact of the development, Officers consider this to be acceptable
for two main reasons. Firstly, the proposed units would be located immediately adjacent to the
existing group of farm buildings. This ensures that the development would relate to the existing
farmstead therefore reducing any impact it would have on the open countryside. Secondly, the site is
well screened by the existing belt of trees surrounding the site. The buildings will not be easily
viewed from within the existing landscape therefore, whilst relatively large in scale, the proposals will
not have a material adverse impact on the open countryside or the wider landscape setting of the
Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape Value.

The Environment Agency have raised no objection to the proposal. However, it has been advised that
due to the livestock numbers involved, the development will require an environmental permit. The
Environment Agency have also made reference to the Control of Pollution Regulations. Members will
note that an informative would be attached to the decision notice to make the applicant aware of these
requirements if permission is granted. Members will be aware that the Environment Agency have
advised that the applicant is currently in the process of applying for an environmental permit.

With regards to residential amenity, the nearest residential properties (aside from the onsite
farmhouse) are Duggleby Wold Farm Cottages, located approximately 120m to the west of the site.
The nearest other dwellings are farmhouses situated a minimum of 750m from the development. An
important consideration in respect to the impact of this development on residential amenity relates to
the issue of odour.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 31



This issue of odour has been addressed by the model study report submitted in support of the planning
application. The report concludes by stating “The results of the modelling indicate that, should the
proposed development of the poultry unit at Foster’s Wold Farm proceed, the 98" percentile hourly
mean odour concentration at nearby residences (not associated to the farm) would be below the
Environment Agency’s benchmark for moderately offensive odours, a 98" percentile hourly mean of
3.0 oue/m3 over a one year period.”

Members will note that if an Environmental Permit is granted by the Environment Agency, this will
regulate the operations on the site. It would cover any nuisance caused by the development including
odours/smells and noise. The comments of the Council’s Environmental Health Officers have raised
no objections to the application.

NYCC Historic Environment Team identifies that the development site sites within a landscape of
intensive archaeological activity. The development site has a high archaeological potential therefore a
scheme of archaeological mitigation is required. A condition has been recommended.

The Highway Authority and Parish Council has raised no objections to the proposal. Furthermore, no
letters of objection have been received from nearby residents.

For the above reasons, the application is recommended for approval.
RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to
be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with the requirements of Policy SP13
and SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Site Plan IP/PS/02
Elevations IP/PS/03

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
INFORMATIVES:

1 The applicant is made aware of the comments of the Environment Agency in respect to the
need for an environmental permit for the development. The applicant is advised to contact
the Environment Agency on 08708 506506.

2 The applicant is made aware that any new or substantially altered agricultural facility must
comply with the Control of Pollution (Silage, Slurry and Agricultural Fuel Oil (SSAFO))
Regulations 2010. To ensure compliance with these regulations the applicant is advised to
contact the Environment Agency Environment Management Team on 08708 506506.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 32



Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 33



JOB TITLE
Broiler Rearing Linit

DWG. TITLE
Location Plan

DATE
Aug 14

Page 34



- | wbny 20/Sd/dl R
AN d1vd HIGNNN 'OMA \

GNVIGOOM LYW INLLSTXD

FR—
=
UEL] NOLLWY3LTV 3iva om
HS 00S=}
Nya JIvos
SISO TR S,48350 4
INENER) \\\\\\\\\
ANZ
40z gnv oz ueld ays PR
F1LL 'OMa 0SS

WA FIVASAY

\\[

fRivH Q3504084

3un Buueay Jajiolg
SovaL 55390V INLLSDA

JiiLaor

V3dY oNIONVAS]

V34V ONIANVASQEYH ONILSTXD

SS9 AvMbton oy, e
a

d38 LLOA

uojey

uinqiays

uLey PJOM S19}S04
suaydels a M
AN3ITD

GNYIQ00M FUNLYW INLLSDA

QNVIG00M LYW INLLST

0567 1870LL0 BIIGON
£08)2v (29210) *0i/leL
TP GZ0A
8J1ys)io, Isp3
Plea

w

INIGTING 39v30LS
350830 VN9

{88.jS 3|ppIN
asnoy ukjjemer]

Squegnsuon Buliuel ey 4 jean3nouby Isie0adg

p1] S23e10058y oI ue|

WWZBEYZ X WWGEYTE
SLINN ONINY I Y3 T10¥8 3S040™d|

rad'

GNVIQ0OM JHNLYW INLLSTG

GNYIG00M LYW INLLSTXD

(pasnsip)

11d

SHIOM JO BINPAYDS B} UM
uolouNnfuod ul peal aq o} s Buimelp siy |




- ¥1 Bny €0/Sd/dl
31va H38AINN 'OMa

EL] NOILYH3LTY

3iva
00z=1

TIVVA | S0 00 TR
1NN
4102 90

WA FvaIAL M

hhhhhh

0667 1820LL0 ©II90N
_________

vvvvv
woyji

Jl
______________

Squesncuon Buiuueld ey 4 [eanynouby 36iienadg
p1] 593810088y 3Ol ug|

BRAD

444444444

<<<<<<<<

mmmmmm

0000000000

NOILLVAI:

13.1Sv3
0o M

wwwwwwwwwww

||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||

%ﬁ._._._._._._.a._._._._______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||

20

Page




Page 37



DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT

lan Pick Associates Ltd

PROPOSED POULTRY UNIT AT FOSTERS WOLD FARM, SHERBURN

(4| oo A% \rmrak.

Report Prepared By: -
lan Pick BSc (Hons) MRICS Client : Messrs W D Stephens
Ian Pick Associates Litd

Liewellyn House M_““" Farm
Middle Street West Heslerton
Kilham Malton
Driffield YO17 8RU

YO25 45D
Tel: 01262 421807
ian@ianpick.co.uk

Page 38



Introduction

This report has been commissioned by Messrs W D Stephens of Moor Farm,
West Heslerton, Malton, YO17 8RU.

Section 42 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
Design and Access Statement to be submitted with the majority of planning
applications. The purpose of this report is to satisfy the requirements of Section
42 of the aforementioned Act.

This report has been prepared to illustrate the process that has led to the
development proposal and to explain and justify the proposal in a structured way.

This report has been prepared by lan Pick. lan Pick is a specialist agricultural
and rural planning consultant. He holds a Bachelor of Science with Honours
Degree in Rural Enterprise and Land Management and is a Professional Member
of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, being qualified in the Rural Practice
Division of the Institution.

lan Pick has 16 years experience, specialising in rural planning whiist employed
by MAFF, ADAS, Acorus and most recently lan Pick Associates Limited.

Background Information

The applicants operate an established agricultural business within the locality
which includes arable and poultry farming operations. The applicants business
has an operational base at Moor Farm, West Heslerton, with additional holdings
at Highdale Farm and Fosters Wold Farm. The applicants holdings at Moor Farm
and Highdale Farm include existing operational poultry units.

The applicants propose to expand their existing farming operations with the
erection of a new poultry unit at Fosters Wold Farm, Sherburn. The proposal
involves the erection of 2 No. purpose built broiler rearing units which will each
house 40000 birds, with a total of 80,000 birds proposed for the site.

UK Poultry Industry

it is essential that the UK continue to expand the British Poultry meat industry to
meet the rising demand from our consumers. This increased demand for the
product follows the horsemeat scandal of 2013 and consumers demand for
British product (retailers are increasing their sourcing of UK poultry meat in part
as a response to provenance and origin concerns), increasing calls for high
welfare standards, reduced food miles and as a response to UK and worldwide
population growth.

Page 39



The producticn of British poultry {chicken) meat in the UK is rising year on year to
meet this demand and reached a record level of 1.4m tonnes in 2013 which was
a 5.5% increase year on year compared to 2012.

Poultry meat is the most popular meat consumed in the UK and its market share
has risen from just under 24% in 1985 to 41% in 2012. This equates to 31.5kg
per capita which is far in excess of other meats. By comparison beef and iamb
consumption combined is 22 kgs per capita. Growth in the market is forecast to
continue. This expanded facility will enable the applicants to expand the
production of fresh poultry meat for the UK market.

The UK is not self-sufficient in chicken. We slaughter approximately 18.0 million
birds per week whereas total demand is estimated at 25 million birds which
means that we have to import approximately seven million birds per week. Fresh
poultry meat is imported into the UK from the Netherlands (45% of all our
imporis) and other countries worldwide. Prepared chicken imports are also
increasing and are predominantly sourced from Brazil and Thailand.

As previously mentioned there is increasing pressure from consumers on
retailers to source all of their poultry meat from the UK. However, the UK poultry
industry is not in a position to supply that demand at this present time hence the
need to expand. Kevin Grace, Tesco's Group Commercial Director, reported at
the NFU's Conference at the end of February 2014 that if Tesco switched to
sourcing all of their poultry meat that they use in their ready meals and frozen to
UK origin the demand would be an additional 4.5 million birds per week which
would mean constructing an additional 800 poultry sheds in which to rear the
birds. If Tesco were to make this move — and it does depend upon the capacity of
the UK poultry industry to deliver — other retailers wouid be sure to follow suit.

This pressure to source British is coming from consumers in part in response to
the horsemeat food scandal. A recent survey of consumers carried out by the
NFU in 2013 found that 86% of shoppers are as likely or more likely to want to
buy more food that has been produced on British farms. A further 78% agree or
strongly agree that supermarkets should sell more food from British farms. In
addition, this expansion is good for the UK economy. For every £1 that farming
contributes to the UK economy, our food manufacturers and wholesalers
contribute a further £5.

World poultry consumption has also seen large increases from 3.2kg per capita
in the 1960’s to 13.6kg in 2009. This trend is set to continue - according to the
OECD-FAO Agricultural Outlook report (2012-2021), world meat consumption is
expected to grow at one of the highest rates among major agricultural
commodities, driven by rising demand in developing countries. Most of this
growth is projected to come from poultry, increasing by 2.4% each year.

Page 40



The global poputation is set to grow by 38% by 2050; much of this growth will be
in developing countries where increasing wealth is leading to richer diets
including a higher percentage of animal protein.

The UK's poultry meat industry requires the support from local planning
authorities when considering planning applications for modem and efficient
developments. The year on year demand is there, the UK is far from self-
sufficient in poultry meat and in the short, medium and long term, reliance on
imports of staple food products will simply not be sustainable.

The UK Poultry industry is an essential cog in the gears of the UK's agricultural
and food industries and is vital to the public for its output of poultry meat and
eggs. The UK poultry meat industry employs around 55,000 people nationally.

The proposed development is necessary for the expansion of the applicants
farming business, and assist in the drive to UK self-sufficiency in poultry meat.

Amount of Development

The planning proposals extends to the erection of 2 No. broiler rearing units
extending to 91.435m x 24.382m, with an eaves height of 2.6m and a ridge
height of 5.35m. The proposed broiler units are to be sited parallel with each
other, and are linked by a 10m x 6m boiler house. The development will be
served by 6 No. feed bins which are located between the proposed poultry units.
Each poultry building includes a control room and store attached to the southern
elevation.

The proposed buildings wilt each house 40,000 broilers, with the two buildings
providing accommodation for 80,000 birds in total.

Use

The proposed buildings are purpose built poultry units. The buildings are of stee!
portal frame construction, with the walls being precast concrete to 600mm with
polyester coated profile sheeting above in Van Dyke Brown. The roof cladding is
polyester coated profile sheeting in Goosewing Grey.

The buildings will be fitted with high velocity ridge mounted ventilation fans and
side inlet vents. Internal equipment includes radiator heating, pan feeders and
non-drip nipple drinkers.

The control room includes a specialist computer system which is thermostatically
controlled to maintain the desired temperature within the bird housing area, using
the heating and ventilation systems. Feeding and lighting is also controlled by the
computer system.

Page 41



The use of the proposed buildings is for the rearing of broilers from day old
chicks through to finished table weight.

The broiler rearing cycle operates on an all in all out system, and each cycle
takes 49 days. The broilers are reared for approximately 42 days, following which
the buildings are cleaned out and prepared for the next batch. The buildings are
empty for cleaning and preparation for approx. 7 days at the end of each flock.
The proposed unit will operate with 7 flocks per annum.

At the end of each flock cycle, the poultry manure is removed from the buildings.
The manure removal process is undertaken with a mechanical loader. All manure
will be loaded from the sheds into trailers which will be sheeted and transported
away from the site for spreading as a sustainable agricultural fertiliser on the
applicants arable cropping land.

Spreading of manure as an agricultural fertiliser is an essential and necessary
operation for sustainable arable cropping. The manure will be stored off site in
field heaps and the applicants will undertake spreading operations after harvest
each year onto stubbles. Manure storage and spreading operations are strictly
controlled by legislation outside of the planning system. The relevant regulations
are The Nitrate Pollution Prevention Regulations which are regulated by the
Environment Agency. The proposed site is located within a Nitrate Vulnerable
Zone (NVZ). All storage, removal and spreading will comply with Nitrate
Poliution Prevention Regulations (2008), ensuring that the manure management
does not have the potential to cause pollution.

Following the removal of the manure, the buildings are washed with high
pressure hoses. The inside of the proposed buildings will be drained into a
sealed underground dirty water containment tank. All washout water from the site
is contained within the dirty water system,

The tank walls and floor will be constructed in concrete to comply with BSEN
1992-3. BSEN 1992-3 is the recognized standard for designing and building
concrete structures for retaining liquids. The loadings of the tank will be to the
standards of BS5502 part 50 and 22. Wall surfaces will be treated with
penetrating sealer to prevent leakage.

At the end of each cleanout period, the tank will be emptied by vacuum tanker for
disposal on agricultural land in accordance with the Nitrate Pollution Prevention
Regulations 2008.

The dirty water management system is an absolute requirement for the
Environmental Permit and ensures that the proposal does not have the potential
for contaminated runoff,

Page 42



Environmental Management

The proposed poultry unit will extend to a total of 80,000 birds. The Industrial
Emissions Directive requires that all poultry units exceeding a threshold figure of
40,000 birds require a permit under the industrial Emissions Directive —
Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control (IPPC).

In order to operate, the propesed poultry unit requires an IPPC permit which is
administered by the Environment Agency. The permit must take into account the
whole environmental performance of the plant, covering e.g. emissions to air,
water and land, generation of waste, use of raw materials, energy efficiency,
noise, prevention of accidents, and restoration of the site upon closure. The
purpose of the Directive is to ensure a high tevel of protection of the environment
taken as a whole.

Paragraph 122 of the Nationat Planning Policy Framework provides clear
guidance to local planning authorities where an environmental permit is required
for a development.

“Local planning authorities should focus on whether the development itself
is an acceptable use of the land, and the impact of the use, rather than the
control of processes or emissions themselves where these are subject to
approval under pollution control regimes. Local planning authorities
should assume that these regimes will operate effectively”.

Essentially, paragraph 122 of the NPPF directs local planning authorities that
IPPC permitting is an effective tool, and the control of process and emissions
which fall within the control of the IPPC permit should be deemed acceptable.

The applicants have undertaken pre application enguiries with the Environment
Agency regarding the IPPC permit. (pre applications reference
EPR/EP3637VF/A001).

The Environment Agency have screened the proposals in terms of ammonia
impacts cn sites designated for Nature Conservation importance This screening
assessment has considered any Special Areas of Conservation (SAC), Special
Protection Areas (SPA) and Ramsar sites within 10km,; any Sites of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI) within 5km and also any National Nature Reserves
(NNR), Local Nature Reserves (LNR), ancient woodlands and local wildlife sites
(LWS) within 2km of the farm.

The Environment Agencies pre application report has been attached to this

application. The proposed development screened out and no further ammonia
assessment is required.

Page 43



In terms of atmospheric emissions from the propased pouitry instaliation, the
proposal is to utilise a high velocity ridge mounted ventilation system. This type
of ventilation system is deemed to be best available technology for the dispersal
of odour and other atmospheric emissions. An odour impact assessment has
been prepared to accompany the IPPC permit application and a copy has been
enclosed for information. The odour assessment demonstrates that the proposal
complies with the permitting guidelines and shows odour exposure of less than 3
european odour units at the closest dwelling excluding the applicants farmhouse.

In terms of noise emissions from the site, this is generally limited to the operation
of the ventilation fans. The ventilation system operated on the poultry unit will be
acoustically attenuated to achieve a rating of negligible impact on a BS4142
assessment at the closest sensitive receptor.

Layout

The development has been sited to the east of the existing buildings at Fosters
Wold Farm, adjacent to existing mature woodland.

The site selected is considered to be the most appropriate location within the
applicants land holding for the development of the poultry unit, and is accessible
through the existing farmstead, and screened from public vantage points by the
existing agricultural buildings and mature woodland.

The chosen location benefits from substantial existing natural landscape
screening in the form of existing tree planting and hedgerows. The existing
landscape screening will assimilate the development into the landscape.

The proposed development includes the proposed poultry units which are two
buildings measuring 91.435m x 24.382m, with an eaves height of 2.6m and a
ridge height of 5.35m. The proposed broiler units are to be sited parallel with
each other, and are linked by a 10m x 6m boiler house. The development will be
served by 6 No. feed bins which are located between the proposed poultry units.
Each poultry building includes a control room and store attached to the southern
elevation, together with a hardstanding for the parking and turning of vehicles.

Scale
The scale of the development is two buildings of dimensions 21.435m x

24.382m, with an eaves height of 2.6m and a ridge height of 5.35m, together with
attached control rooms and stores, boiler house and 6 No. feed bins.

Page 44



Landscaping

The proposed broiler rearing unit has been sited to minimise impact on the
landscape, utilising existing landscape features. The application site is visual
remote from settlements and unconnected dwellings. The site benefits from
existing vegetative screening from all aspects in the form of mature woodland.

The proposed development is also of an agricultural nature and therefore
appropriate to a rural location. The proposed buildings are of agricultural
appearance, with the external cladding being polyester coated profite sheeting in
Van Dyke Brown for the walls and Goosewing Grey for the roof. The proposed
building measure 5.35m to the ridge and are therefore relatively low.

The combination of the existing landscape screening, low eaves and ridge
heights, and judicious use of materials will ensure that the development does not
have a material adverse impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding landscape.

Appearance

The building proposed is a purpose built livestock unit, design with its function in
mind. The building will be constructed from an internal steel frame, with profile
sheet walls in Van Dyke Brown and roof Goosewing Grey. Hardstanding will be
concrete construction.

Access

Access to the proposed development will be provided by the existing farm
entrance.

In terms of traffic generation, the proposed development will create the following
commercial traffic:

Activity Vehicle Frequency
Chick Delivery Articulated HGV 1 per flock cycle
Feed Delivery Articulated HGV 10 per flock cycle
Bird Collection Articulated HGV 12 per flock cycle
Fuel Delivery Rigid HGV 1 per flock cycle
Carcass Collection Box Van 2 per flock cycle
Total 26 per flock cycle (52

movements)
Total per Annum (7 182 per Annum(364
flocks) movements)

8

Page 45



The total commercial traffic generated by the proposed poultry unit is 182 visits
per annum (364 movements). This equates to 3.5 vehicles per week (7
movements on average per week). The proposed highway impact of the
development is not deemed to be significant. The local highway network can
easily accommodate the modest increase in traffic associated with the proposed
development.

Policy Context

National Planning Policy is contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework which was introduced on 27" March 2012. The NPPF provides
support for economic growth and development of agricultural businesses in
paragraph 28.

* 3. Supporting a prosperous rural economy
28. Planning policies should support economic growth in rural areas in
order to create jobs and prosperity by taking a positive approach to
sustainable new development. To promote a strong rural economy, local
and neighbourhood plans should:

* support the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of
business and enterprise in rural areas, both through conversion of
existing buildings and well designed new buildings;

* promote the development and diversification of agricultural and
other land-based rural businesses;”

The proposed development represents the sustainable growth and expansion of
an agricultural business and is therefore compliant with the thrust of the NPPF.

Local Planning Policy

Relevant local planning policies are shown below, SP9 relates to the Land-Based
and Rural Economy and SP20 refers to Generic Development Management
Issues.

SP9 The Land-Based and Rural Economy

Ryedale’s land-based economy will be sustained and diversified with support for:
* New buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working
countryside, including for farming, forestry and equine purposes

Page 46




SP20 Generic Development Management Issues
Character

New development will respect the character and context of the immediate locality
and the wider landscape/townscape character in terms of physical features and
the type and variety of existing uses.

Proposed uses and activity will be compatible with the existing ambience of the
immediate locality and the surrounding area and with neighbouring land uses and
would not prejudice the continued operation of existing neighbouring land uses.

The cumulative impact of new development on the character of an area will also
be considered.

Design

The design of new development will follow the principles established in Policy
SP186. Extensions or alterations to existing buildings will be appropriate and
sympathetic to the character and appearance of the existing building in terms of
scale, form, and use of materials.

The proposed development at Foster Wold Farm is for the sustainable
development of an agricultural business and improvement and continuation of
the agricultural enterprise. Therefore, the new building is necessary to support
land-based activity and working in the countryside, and as such complies with the
requirements of Policy SP9.

In terms of policy SP20, the development will respect the character and context
of the immediate landscape as the development has been located adjacent to the
existing agricultural buildings and enclosed by mature woodland shelter belts.
This ensures that the development will not have an unacceptable detrimental
effect on the surrounding landscape.

The proposed materials are typical of an agricultural building in the locality, and
have been chosen in order to be appropriate to the rural location.

With reference to the amenity of neighbours, the proposal requires an IPPC
permit in order to operate. This permit imposes a high degree of protection to
neighbours and stringently controls the emissions from the site in terms of odour,
noise, ammonia etc. Paragraph 122 of the National Planning Policy Framework
provides local ptanning authorities with clear guidance that IPPC permits are an
effective tool.

10

Page 47




The proposed development is generally compliant with the Ryedale Local Plan
Strategy.

lan Pick
August 2014

11

Page 48



Colin Douthwaite

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Good afternoon

Please may I give you the following information on planning applications put before the Council at their

MARGARET WALKER [margaret18a@btinternet.com]

16 September 2014 17:36
Development Management
Sherburn PC

meeting on the 15th September 2014

;‘-14/00914/MFUL Erection of 2 broiler units at Fosters Wold Farm

The Council have no objections or comment s to make

14/00132/FUL Re-roofing and installation of Solar Panels @ Kingspan

The Council have no objections or comments to make.

14/00501/FUL Change of use @47-49 St Hildas St.
The Council would like to comment about the current over crowded facility of on street parking at this site
and ask is this to be worsened by this proposal for the change of use?

Regards,
Margaret Walker
Clerk Sherburn PC

Page 49



Agenda Iltem 8

Item Number: 8

Application No: 14/00613/0UT

Parish: Claxton Parish Council

Appn. Type: Outline Application

Applicant: CR Fawcett (Mr & Mrs Carl Fawcett)

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural worker's dwelling (site area 0.lha) (revised
details to refusal 13/00037/OUT dated 31.05.2013).

Location: Land Off Kirk Balk Lane Claxton

Registration Date:

8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 1 August 2014

Overall Expiry Date: 8 July 2014

Case Officer: Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325

CONSULTATIONS:

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No comments - falls outside scope of matters to be
consulted on

Land Use Planning In an area not served by public sewerage network.
Recommends environment agency be consulted

Highways North Yorkshire No objection - recommend conditions

Property Management No views received to date

Parish Council No objection

Neighbour responses: Mrs E J Whiteley, Bill Selman, Mr C F Brown,

SITE:

The proposed site of the dwelling is located within the wider open countryside, approximately 650m
to the east of the village of Claxton and 600m to the north of Kissthorn Farm, the current farmstead
serving the agricultural unit. The application site consists of undeveloped arable land, but is situated
within relatively close proximity to an existing agricultural building which is located closer to Kirk
Balk Lane.

PROPOSAL:

Outline permission is sought for the erection of an agricultural worker's dwelling (site area 0.lha)
(revised details to refusal 13/00037/OUT dated 31.05.2013). All matters are reserved for future
consideration. The proposed dwelling has a total floor area of 150 square metres.

The application is accompanied by an Agricultural Justification Report and Appraisal from Cundalls.

The Executive Summary is appended to this report. The full document can be viewed on the
Council’s website.

POLICY:

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 50



Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of new housing

Policy SP9 - The Land-Based and Rural Economy

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

HISTORY:

13/00037/OUT — Planning permission refused 28" May 2013 - Erection of an agricultural workers
dwelling (site area 0.1ha) at the same site. The earlier outline application proposed a dwelling with a
total floor area of 230 square metres. The reasons for refusal stated:

1. The Local Planning Authority considers that the applicant has failed to demonstrate an essential
need for a rural worker to live permanently on site. Moreover, there is no evidence that the business
has been planned on a sound financial basis. The scale of the dwelling is such that it would require
significant capital investment and the lack of information provided within the application provides
uncertainty as to whether the costs of the new dwelling will be, or can be, sustained by the farm
enterprise. As such the application is considered to be contrary to Section 6 Paragraph 55 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

2. Policy SP2 of the 'emerging' Local Plan Strategy seeks to ensure that new build dwellings located
within the wider open countryside will only be permitted when necessary to support the land based
economy where an essential need for residential development in that location can be justified.

The Local Planning Authority considers that the essential need for the proposed development has not
been justified. As such, the proposal constitutes an unjustified new dwelling located within the open
countryside. The proposed dwelling is located in open countryside beyond any development limit and
in an unsustainable location. It is considered to be contrary to the requirements of Paragraph 14 of
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SP2 of the 'emerging' Local Plan Strategy.

APPRAISAL:

Members should note that the previous application (Planning Reference 13/00037/OUT) for an
agricultural workers dwelling was accompanied by a ‘commentary’ report from Carter Jonas
explaining the applicants justification for the dwelling. The Local Planning Authority however sought
the advice of an independent agricultural assessor in order to ensure an appropriate assessment of the
functional requirement for the dwelling had been carried out.

Discussions have taken place with the agent with regard to this revised proposal. The two main
differences from the previously refused planning application and this proposal are:

e  The refused dwelling was 230 square metres in floor area, whilst this dwelling is proposed to be
150 square metres.

e The farming enterprise has now 140 - 160 ‘Other cattle’, compared to 80 on the previous
planning application.

The breakdown of livestock of the farm enterprise is:

e Sheep 750
e Breeding Cattle 50
e Other Cattle 140-160

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 51



The main considerations to be taken into account with regard to this proposal are:

i. The functional and essential requirement for a rural worker to live permanently at the proposed site
ii. The scale of the proposed dwelling

iii. Impact upon the Wider Open Countryside landscape

iv. Highway safety

v. Water supply

vi. Third party responses

vii. Conclusions

i. The functional requirement for a rural worker to live permanently at the proposed site

Policy SP2 (Delivery and Distribution of new housing) of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy
states the following:

When mnecessary to support the land based economy where an essential need for residential
development in the location can be justified.

Policy SP9 (The Land-Based Rural Economy) of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy states the
following:

New buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working countryside, including
for farming, forestry and equine purposes

Paragraph 28 of Section 3 (Supporting a prosperous rural economy) of the National Planning Policy
Framework states planning policies should support economic growth in rural areas in order to create
jobs and prosperity by taking a positive approach to sustainable new development. It then suggests
that to promote a strong rural economy, local and neighbourhood plans should support the sustainable
growth and expansion of all types of business and enterprise in rural areas and promote the
development and diversification of agricultural and other land based rural business.

Paragraph 55 of Section 6 (Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes) of the National Planning
Policy Framework states that Local Planning Authorities should avoid new isolated homes unless
there are special circumstances. One such circumstance is the essential need for a rural worker to live
permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside.

The National Planning Policy Framework does not include any clarification of how such need should
be demonstrated. However it is considered that guidance can be taken from the now superseded
Planning Policy Statement 7 (Sustainable Development in Rural Areas), Annexe A.

The tests from the former Planning Policy Statement 7 (Sustainable Development in Rural Areas)
annex A are as follows:

1. There is a clearly established existing functional need.

2. the need relates to a full time worker or one who is primarily involved in agriculture and does not
relate to a part-time requirement.

3. The unit and the agricultural activity concerned have been established for at least three years, have
been profitable for at least one of them, are currently financially sound and have a clear prospect of
remaining so.

4. The functional need could not be fulfilled by another existing dwelling on the unit or any other
existing accommodation in the area which is suitable and available for occupation by the workers
concerned.

5. Other normal planning requirements.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 52



The recent decision of a Planning Inspector when dealing with a proposal for the erection of a
detached three bedroom agricultural workers dwelling with an attached single storey ancillary farm
office following the part relocation of an existing general purpose agricultural building at Low Lane,
Westow (Planning Application reference 12/00331/FUL) (Appeal reference
APP/Y2736/A/13/2197766) identifies that:

7. No definition of ‘essential’ is given in the Framework, but the main parties agreed that the
functional and financial tests set out in the Annex to the now superseded PPG7: Sustainable
Development in Rural Areas form a reasonable basis for such an assessment. The functional test
establishes whether the enterprise whether the need for a full time worker to live at the site can be
Justified for the proper functioning of the enterprise and the financial test addresses the viability of
the enterprise and whether it can sustain the cost of the dwelling. If this is not the case then the
development cannot be said to be sustainable; promoting sustainable development (economic, social
and environmental) is ‘golden thread’ which runs through the Framework.’

The main farming operations are currently managed from two holdings what abut each other. These
are known as Kissthorn Farm and Kirk Balk Farm. Kissthorn Farm equates to approximately 70% of
the total farmland which is held on a secure Agricultural Holdings Act Tenancy. The business farms
over 480 acres of arable and grassland on both holdings to produce a variety of crops and it supports
the following livestock for breeding and pedigree sales:

250 breeding ewes

350 store and prime fattening lambs
25 breeding rams

50 breeding cattle

80 store cattle and bulling heifers
60-80 rearing calves and young stock

It is noted that part of the 194.25 hectares (480 acres) is given over to a rural diversification scheme in
the form of touring caravan site, granted planning permission in 2005 (Planning Reference
05/00411/MFUL). This amounts to approximately 4.3 hectares (10.6 acres).

In terms of the operational use of the business, the majority of the farming takes place within the
Kissthorn Farm holding which is located approximately 600m to the south of the application site.
Whilst it is noted that a significant proportion of the lambing is stated to take place at the Kirk Balk
site, the short term, seasonal nature of the lambing process means that temporary accommodation
could meet the need to satisfy an on-site requirement. Furthermore, in the applicants submitted
justification document, it states that on a usual winter programme for breeding cattle, they are first
gathered on the land at Kirk Balk Lane and then kept in the building until early February before being
transported to Kissthorn Farm for calving.

When the previous application was submitted, the Local Planning Authority sought the advice of an
independent agricultural assessor to assess the proposal at that time. The approval stated the
following:-

4.2.3 We aware that normal practice is to keep sheep and cattle outside for most of the year, although
should conditions dictate they are sometimes housed inside during lambing and calving. As the
breeding cattle are transported to Kissthorn Farm and calving.

4.2.4 We acknowledge that modern farming practices and Government legislation requires an onsite
presence so that there is always someone readily available immediately before, during and after
lambing to deal with any issues or emergencies that may arise and to ensure the health and welfare of
newborn and young calves and lambs. However, this is not a year-round justification given the short
lambing timescale and this could therefore be facilitated by temporary accommodation on site during
the lambing ‘season’. This business in its current form therefore has no requirement or need for a
permanent residential presence at Kirk Balk Lane.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 53



Whilst it is evident that the enterprise is continuing to develop, Officers consider that there is still not
a clear functional need for a full time agricultural worker to reside on site at Kirk Balk Lane given the
nature and extent of the livestock there.

Point 3 from Annex A of Planning Policy Statement 7 (Sustainable Development in Rural Areas)
states:

The unit and the agricultural activity concerned have been established for at least three years, have
been profitable for at least one of them, are currently financially sound and have a clear prospect of
remaining so.

The building of a new dwelling involves significant capital investment. As part of the planning
application, a letter from the farm business manager and business accountant has been submitted. The
independent agricultural assessor for the previous application stated:

4.4 As the information provided within the application has no formal accounts we are unsure if this
investment has been factored into a business plan (profit and loss calculations). We are concerned
that any net profit would be required to service debt. We are therefore uncertain as to whether any
business plan is sound or whether the costs will be covered by the farm enterprise.

4.4.6 We would normally expect to see a Business Plan for the next three years to show that this has
been taken into account for the long term viability and plans to expand the business.

Therefore, it is still considered that the applicant’s financial assessment provides limited information
to demonstrate clear planning of the business over proposed stocking and performance levels.

Point 4 from Annex A of Planning Policy Statement 7 (Sustainable Development in Rural Areas)
states:

The functional need could not be fulfilled by another existing dwelling on the unit or any other
existing accommodation in the area which is suitable and available for occupation by the workers
concerned.

The existing dwelling at Kissthorn Farm is located only 600m to the south of Kirk Balk Lane. From
the above information, there is an unproven functional need for a stockman to reside permanently on
site as Kissthorn Farm is the main farming base, given that Kirk Balk Lane is mainly used for lambing
and arable uses.

To conclude, it is considered that whilst it is evident that the enterprise is continuing to develop, the
Local Planning Authority are not satisfied that there is a clear, functional and essential need for a full
time agricultural worker to reside permanently at the site given the nature of the livestock that is
located at Kirk Balk Lane.

ii. The scale of the proposed dwelling

The previously refused planning application sought outline permission for the erection a dwelling
measuring 230 square metres in floor area. This was considered to be excessive by Officers and the
Asset Management Surveyor. This application seeks outline permission for a 150 square metre
dwelling. The Council’s Asset Management Surveyor still considers that this dwelling is too large for
an agricultural workers dwelling in this location. Furthermore, with the lack of any formal accounts
and without a detailed financial assessment to indicate how the costs of constructing the proposed
dwelling has been factored into the future operation of the farm enterprise, there remains a high level
of uncertainty as to whether the costs of constructing a dwelling of this scale will (or could) be
covered by the farm business.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 54



iii. Impact upon the wider open countryside landscape

In terms of landscape impact, the proposed dwelling would be situated approximately 50m from the
nearest point of the existing agricultural building. There are Officers concerns that there are no other
agricultural buildings located within close proximity to the site. It is an isolated location and the
proposed dwelling would represent an unjustified visual intrusion within an area that is generally
wider open countryside. The dwelling would be readily visible from public viewpoints around the site
because it is flat, open with relatively little boundary screening. The detailed design of the proposed
dwelling is not to be considered at this outline permission stage.

iv. Highway safety

The Local Highway Authority has raised no objection to the proposal in terms of its impact upon
highway safety, subject to the suggestion condition regarding the discharge of surface water.

v. Water supply

Yorkshire Water stated that the proposal is in an area not served by the public sewerage network and
the application should be referred to the Environment Agency. The Environment Agency stated that
the proposal falls outside the scope of matters to be consulted on. Discussions would need to taken
place with Local Planning Authority’s Environmental Health section at the reserved matters stage
with regard to private treatment facilities.

vi. Third party responses

Two letters of support have been received with regard to the proposal. One is from the National
Farmers Union North East Region. The full letter of support may be viewed on the Council’s website.
A summary of the NFU letter of support includes the following main points:

e There is a lack of affordable housing in the local vicinity to the site.
e The NFU considers that the Local Planning Authorities should encourage and enable young people
to continue to live and work in the countryside

The village of Claxton is close to the site, within 540 metres at its nearest point. It should also be
noted that the recently adopted Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy does make provision for the
erection of dwellings in the ‘wider open countryside where:

New build dwellings necessary to support the land-based economy where an essential need for
residential development in that location can be justified.

However, in this instance there remains an unproven functional need for a stockman to reside
permanently on site as Kissthorn Farm is the main farming base, given that Kirk Balk Lane is mainly
used for lambing and arable uses.

The other letter of support is from the occupiers of ‘Vicarage Farm’ which is the closest residential
dwelling to the site of Kirk Balk Lane, approximately 280m to the north west of the site. They have
stated that a house would be an excellent starter farm for the eldest son of the applicants.

The occupiers of “The Lodge, Bossall’ which is located approximately 480m to the east of the site
have raised no objection to the proposal.

Claxton and Sand Hutton Parish Council have raised no objection to the proposal. They have stated
however that it is important to protect land against unnecessary building, so the development should
remain a facility for farming.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 55



vii. Conclusions

To conclude, the proposed development is considered to be contrary to the requirements of Paragraph
55 of the National Planning Policy Framework because the applicant has failed to demonstrate the
functional and essential need for a rural worker to live permanently at the proposed site and that the
business is based on a sound financial basis projecting into the future. As a result, the proposed
dwelling is considered to be an unjustified new dwelling outside of any development limit which is
detrimental to the visual amenities of the wider open countryside and contrary to the requirements of
Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework and contrary to Policy SP2 of the Ryedale
Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

Members will be aware that Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004)
requires by law that applications must be determined in accordance with the adopted Development
Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this case, there are no material
considerations to justify a decision contrary to the requirements of Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Plan —
Local Plan Strategy.

RECOMMENDATION: Refusal

1 The Local Planning Authority considers that the applicant has failed to demonstrate a
functional need for a rural worker to live permanently on site. Moreover, there is no
evidence that the business has been planned on a sound financial basis. The scale of the
dwelling is such that it would require significant capital investment and the lack of
information provided within the application provides uncertainty as to whether the costs of
the new dwelling will be, or can be, sustained by the farm enterprise. As such the
application is considered to be contrary to Section 6 Paragraph 55 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

2 Policy SP2 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy seeks to ensure that new build
dwellings located within the wider open countryside will only be permitted when necessary
to support the land based economy where an essential need for residential development in
that location can be justified.

The Local Planning Authority considers that the essential need for the proposed
development has not been justified. As such, the proposal constitutes an unjustified new
dwelling located within the open countryside. The proposed dwelling is located in open
countryside beyond any development limit and in an unsustainable location. It is considered
to be contrary to the requirements of Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 56



Land at Kirk Balk Lane

Orair:

b
E Sand Hills

-

Ml Hill

& RYEDA

e

DEVEL®Q"
MANA

L S TE—

' - L 20 Pt Lk 1A
vl Promap Applicant: CR Fawcett

Page 57



ENINIDVYNYN
ANA 7 T0A20
M0

4 ;
g :..rq?!flm_\ Pl i 4
_f b < m "3 wt g =
.pn.un-. T ” ] 5 . " -.._
gl | = »
wh.q._n_ ..ﬂw; = 5 b N 1
5 | - 4 W
Fon . #
N _-.. L ke = T per = “—
" hm M-I- _”_ b_ '.l.-. = ¢n|u
3
i

Land Owned and Land Tenanted By CR Fawcert

Land Teranted on Agricultural Holdings Act |'986 Tenancy in Red

Land Owned in Blue

S o e il : y

Page 58



HT‘ QY MAL BrTm WO WTTH TME

aTWRITY O 1
Ll TR L W o b

| SRmE & : 1%, 5%

THel ADT = et e T

2#;7"«.“'? Ti 28 COWEL

MOUT TN Thighl ey v Tk

avr
weE

. Je- Mo CoPvRm Lvnch F Pty Eoveet |

Vate af Pickering

Salona
Loun _mm Great Barugh 5,... m
i 180
% - “East Ness lu? W Misperion Y g Marines
giave '=:-.__—.h " YL
| i Low Wirane
\ polion  DGHaat )
MMMM"{-. ﬂ-mhr
Tom == q% T T
g“‘}h lﬂznnlh!ti ’ 2= Milling !
chiwian le-Snest k:v____ : A - . L ‘;mmmnh
= arlan B A N, a
ardian Hills o€ Beogpmmos T ode
Wagantnopd ; Tomoc
':: . ﬂ:unhﬂ"‘"ﬂ gnuln gﬂﬂmﬂ“
Terringlen W‘Q'
Vs
W.Eurn i " i K
Bulnar a . ‘-‘h‘-—-—
o L& g N:J'Tn 4‘ :Qu?l-p [-1d
Shenl! ol - Hutdon Langlon Grimsten

ok 1
P, — TBrossi ™ Sh':;[ .ﬁ\\

N B
Wherism ‘_'5_' =

SBuryrhonps 'lr:\f_ 0, =~
r N anher)

Page 59



Dwoalling on kand of Kisk Balk Lane, Sand Hufton Near York - CH Fawcelt

Car Parking Area

Garden Area
Farm Yard Area and Building

Page 60



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The report has been prepared to accompany an outline planning application for a farm workers
dwelling on land owned by the Fawcett family at Kirk Balk Lane, Sand Hutton.

The report sets out the justification for the proposed dwelling within the context of national and
local planning policy and the needs and aspirations of the business. The reports main aim is to
justify the need for a farm workers dwelling on land off Kirk Balk lane with a full description of
the business and the clear need.

The proposal at Kirk Balk farm is for a modest 150 square meter farm workers dwelling to
accommodate the applicant oldest Son, Edward and his family. The proposed dwelling will be
sited close to an existing hedge and within the farm yard adjacent to an existing building and
yard.

The business farms 480 acres of arable and grassland and manages a herd of 50 suckler cows
with followers, 250 breeding ewes, 350 other sheep and up to 160 other store cattle and rearing
calves.

It is well known that Identification of animals in distress either as a result of lambing, calving,
illness or injury is essential for efficient management of both breeding cattle and sheep herds and
with the applicants high number of breeding stock this is a major cansideration of the report.

The report has shown that the applicant has fully justified the labour requirements for a second
dwelling with a requirement for over 5 full time workers required to run the business. In
addition, the report has also demonstrated there are no other suitable dwellings in the local
vicinity to serve this holding to help meet the functional needs, i.e. within sight and sound of the
farm buildings.

In summary of the applicants situation it is clearly evident that's there is a significant need for
constant supervision to allow the business to maintain a high standard of management and
ensure the continued welfare of cheir high value cattle and sheep.

Therefore, it is hoped that the proposed permanent dwelling that is identified in the application

and report will receive Ryedale District Councils support and help the applicants meet the
essential supervision, security and functional need that the holding and business require.

RiAgricuftura\PLANNING Kissthorn Farm - FaweettiLand off Kirk Balk Lane Planning\Application two 2014\ustification Report 27.05.14 docx

Page 61



{5 Market Place, Malton, North Yarkshire, YOI7 7LP
t. 01653 697820
malton@cundalls.co.uk
www.cundalls.co.uk

DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT

AGRICULTURAL WORKERS DWELLING
TO SUPPORT THE EXISTING FARMING ENTERPRISE

On land at
Kirk Balk Lane, Sand Hutton, York

Prepared for and on behalf of
Mr and Mrs CR Fawcett
Kissthorn Farm
Sand Hutton
York
North Yorkshire
YO4| ILF

At
May 2014

RYEDAL”
Iy C)OQJIB/C)UT
-8 JUN 204t
DEVTT
B

Page 62



APPLICATION DETAILS

Applicant:
Applicants Address:
Applicants Agent:
Agents Address:
Site Address:
Application Title:
Application Type:
Application Date:
Location:

Proposed Use:

Reason for Proposal:

Parking:

Foul Water:

Size:

Mr and Mrs Carl Fawcett and Edward Fawcett

Kissthorn Farm, Sand Hutton, York, YO41 ELF

William Tyson BSc (Hons) MRICS FAAV, Cundalls Chartered Surveyors
Cundalls, 15 Market Place, Malton, North Yorkshire, YOI7 7LP
Kirk Balk Farm, Kirk Balk Lane, Sand Hutton, York

Proposed Erection of one agricultural workers dwelling

Outline planning application with all matter reserved

May 2014

Sand Hutton near York

Class C3 - Dwelling House

Increased functional need at Kirk Balk Farm and new agricultural
workers accommeodation requirements due to arable enterprise and

livestock supervision need.

Vehicle and pedestrian access to the new dwelling will be via the
existing private driveway

it is proposed that the new dwelling will have its own soak-away
drainage system.

Overall total accommodation living space 150 square metres

Page 63



INTRODUCTION

This planning application seeks outline planning consent for the erection of one dwelling for a
farm worker to the north east corner of Field SE6960 9737 and to the south east corner of
Field SE6960 9761 which lie to the east of Claxton and the north of Sand Hutton, York. All
matters are reserved for future consideration.

USE

The site would create one dwelling that would enhance the character and viability of the
surrounding area and the development would avoid the inefficient use of land whilst respecting
local character.

LAYOUT

The application for a dwelling will provide much needed standard residential accommodation
and will have no material adverse affect upon existing amenities or adjoining properties.

The proposed dwelling is to be located in close proximity to a large Hawthorn hedge which will
provide screening. The proposed dwelling will have no affect whatsoever on the wildlife value or
natural environment surrounding the adjacent hedge.

SCALE

The proposed dwelling will be a two storey unit of approximately 150 sq.mtrs of living space.
This will provide much needed agricultural accommodation for the applicant and his family. The
eaves height will be approximately 4.5 to 5 meters and the ridge height will be approximately 7
meters high.

LANDSCAPING

Landscaping of the site will take place including provision of shrubs and other plantings between
the proposed dwelling and the surrounding yard area. The proposed development will have no
affect whatsoever on existing hedgerows or shrubs lying adjacent to the proposed site.

In addition to the above, a garden will be established surrounding the proposed dwelling with

car parking area to the west of the proposal. The existing hedge and grass verges which bound
the surrcunding land and yard area at Kirk Balk Lane will not be affected whatsoever.

Page 64



APPEARANCE

As this application is for Outline Planning Permission, certain specific information will not be
included at this stage. However, the proposed dwelling will be constructed of traditional
materials customary to the surrounding area and adjoining properties which will sit comfortably
within Sand Hutton's mix of traditional buildings and dwellings.

ACCESS

Access will be via the existing vehicular access to the land off Kirk Balk Lane and the proposed
dwelling will be accessed via the farm yard. This will not have a detrimental impact on the
safety of pedestrians and/or other road users or the free flow of traffic upon the highway
network, Al associated parking will be off street and adjacent to the proposed dwelling.

Page 65



c_C - MO CONECT Gy

Glenys Yates

From: Fiona Hill [fiona@thebyre.me.uk]

Sent: 08 July 2014 12:24

To: Development Management

Subject: 14/00613/0UT - Land off Kirk Balk Lane, Claxton

Dear Sir/Madam

The Parish Council met last night and discussed this planning application.

There are no objections as the proposal seems logical for the future of the farm.

However it was felt that it is important to protect land against unnecessary building, so the development should
remain as a facility for farming.

Yours faithfully

Fiona Hill
Parish Clerk

Claxton & Sand Hutton Parish Clerk

Page 66



Agenda Iltem 9

Item Number: 9

Application No: 14/00856/FUL

Parish: Norton Town Council

Appn. Type: Full Application

Applicant: Norton Bowls Club (RCLC)

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of part of bowls club building from D2 Use

(Assembly and Leisure) to D1 Use (Non-residential institutions) for use of
a dance school and a pre school playgroup to include parking and
dedicated outdoor play space for the pre-school playgroup.

Location: Norton Bowls Club Bowling Lane Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17
8EG

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 23 October 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 15 October 2014

Case Officer: Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Recommend approval

Highways North Yorkshire No objection, recommend conditions
Environmental Health Officer No views received to date

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objection but recommends conditions
Property Management No views received to date

Neighbour responses: None

SITE:

Norton Bowls Centre is located within the development limits of Norton within close proximity to the
Malton - Scarborough railway line. The site is situated within Flood Zone 2 with a number of
residential properties adjoining the site in George Cartwright Close.

PROPOSAL:

The proposal seeks planning permission for the change of use and alteration of part of the existing
bowls club (D2 Assembly and Leisure) to accommodate a dance school and pre-school playgroup (D1
Non-residential institutions), to include car parking and outdoor play space for the pre-school

playgroup.

The details of each proposed use can be found within the submitted supporting information of the
application which reads as follows:

“The proposal involves the partial subdivision of Norton Bowls Club to incorporate ‘Dance
Expression’ and ‘Brooklyn Pre-school Playgroup’, two existing businesses of Malton / Norton. Each
use will accommodate separate entrances. Parking and access for Dance Expression will be from the
large car park at the western end of the current building and parking / access to Brooklyn will be
from the eastern end of the building. There will be a new external play area to the north of the
building for the sole use of the playgroup.

Dance expression will provide 3 No interlinked studios with a reception area / office, changing
facilities and relevant storage.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 67



Brooklyn Pre-School Playgroup intends to have a maximum of 30 children (aged approx 2-4) in
attendance initially between 9:00 - 15:30 during weekdays, however their future business plan may
have this extending to 8:25 - 17:00. The play group staff would be in attendance outside of these
hours for preparation and tidying away any activities that occur during the day’s session. The
playgroup primarily operates during term times but there may be a desire to extend this to have
occasional sessions during the school holidays in order to give parents a break. There may also be
times when the staff are in attendance but the playgroup is not open. E.g. staff meetings, preparation
for new term etc.”

HISTORY:
There is no relevant planning history.
POLICY:

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
Planning Practice Guidance

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

APPRAISAL:

Policy SPI11 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy provides the policy advice for the protection of
community facilities by stating “Existing local retail, community, cultural, leisure and recreational
services and facilities that contribute to the vitality of the towns and villages and the well-being of
local communities will be protected from loss/redevelopment...” In this case, the proposal seeks to
change the use of part of the existing bowls club resulting in the loss of some of the floor area serving
the community facility. However, by introducing new uses into the building, which in themselves
contribute to the local community, the development will safeguard the continued use of the bowls
club into the future. In light of this, there is a clear gain to the local community and the proposal is
therefore considered to be in acceptable in principle.

In terms of residential amenity, the main concern relate to the levels of activity and noise created by
the playgroup, especially with respect to external play area. It is recognised that such activities can
result in levels of noise and disturbance that could be harmful to the amenity of nearby residential
properties. In this case, the external play area is located immediately adjacent to or within close
proximity to a number of residential properties. No neighbour objections have been received to the
proposal.

In assessing the impact of the playgroup it is important to note the operations of the facility. The
application proposes a playgroup of up to 30 children. The hours of the playgroup will initially be
9:00 - 15:30, although this may increase to 8:25 - 17:00 in the future. The playgroup will not operate
during the weekend or bank holidays. Whilst officers accept that the outdoor play has the potential to
impact on nearby residents, taking into account the scale of the operations and the hours of opening,
the likely harm is not considered to be sufficient to warrant refusal of the planning application. The
application, subject to the recommended conditions, is therefore considered to be in accordance with
the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 68



With respect to flood risk, the Environment Agency has confirmed that the application site is in Flood
Zone 2. Nevertheless no objections have been raised to the proposed change of use. The EA have
however made a number of recommendations to mitigate against any future flooding including raising
floor levels wherever possible, and the production of a flood evacuation plan. The applicant has been
made aware of these comments through an informative.

NYCC Highway Authority have raised no objections to the proposal, subject to conditions to ensure a
travel plan for the pre-school playgroup element of the scheme and to ensure the proposed car parking
spaces remain available for use.

To conclude, the proposed development is considered to be one that is beneficial to the local
community whilst ensuring no adverse impact in terms of residential amenity, flood risk or highway
safety. The application is therefore recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 The use hereby permitted shall be restricted to a 30 place pre-school playgroup and dance
school and for no other use within Use Class D1 of the Town & Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987 (or as amended) unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason:- In order to safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents in accordance with
Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.

3 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the pre-school
playgroup hereby approved shall only operate between 0825 hours and 1700 hours on
Mondays to Fridays; and shall not be used at all for the approved use on Saturdays, Sundays
or Public Holidays.

Reason:- To ensure that the amenities of nearby residents are not unreasonably affected by
the development and to ensure compliance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan
Strategy.

4 Before the commencement of development hereby permitted, details of the outdoor play
area serving the playgroup, including a schedule of materials and the boundary treatment,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details
so approved shall be implemented in full before the development is first brought into use,
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the
neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality.

5 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town & Country Planning General Permitted or
Special Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on drawing number
1137-01-GA-05 for parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept available for their
intended purpose at all times.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy and to ensure
these areas are kept available for their intended use in the interests of highway safety and the
general amenity of the development.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 69



6 Prior to the development being brought into use, a Travel Plan shall have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway
Authority. This shall include:

(i) the appointment of a travel co-ordinator

(ii) a partnership approach to influence travel behaviour

(iii) measures to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport other than the private
car by persons associated with the site

(iv) provision of up-to-date details of public transport services

(v) continual appraisal of travel patterns and measures provided through the travel plan

(vi) improved safety for vulnerable road users

(vii) a reduction in all vehicle trips and mileage

(viii) a programme for the implementation of such measures and any proposed physical
works

(ix) procedures for monitoring the uptake of such modes of transport and for providing
evidence of compliance.

(x) measures to ensure on-site parent pick-up and drop-off facilities within the site and a
programme for on-going monitoring and continual appraisal of its operation and
improvement

The Travel Plan shall be implemented and the development shall thereafter be carried out
and operated in accordance with the Travel Plan.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy and to
establish measures to encourage more sustainable non-car modes of transport.

7 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Proposed Site Layout - 1137 01 GA 05

Proposed Plan - 1137 01 GA 01

Proposed Elevations - 1137 01 GA 02

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

INFORMATIVE:

1 The applicant is made aware of the comments received by the Environment Agency dated
12 September 2014.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 70



Norton Bowls Club OS Plan 1:1250 at A4 /
Bramhall Blenkharn The Maltings Malton YO17 7DP /4
1137 08 i~
0.83 ha

Page 71



uleyyua|q __mf/EEn_
D N— -

B —

uojssaidx3 eoueq
pue simog Jo} Yied Jed

| 10 yied 1o
|

— ,,,,
[ \
— nN uApothg |
| o My
- R
| \
—— fissinN ukpjooig



I )

avy ava  pLL00
-

) P )

00114 W
s g s

ueld Bugsixg

B

qnIO SiMOg UOHON

-

UOUON
QN0 SIMOg UOON e
™ '© 509069 69910 § 0E00B9 69910 3 |
AL LVOA SIUSHOA WON  UOWSIN  SBUBe OUL |
aonoeid PaiaLEYD VEId fFHh ;

UJBYYUD|] ||BYWEIq

LA

LAY

[

>

Page 73



ue|d pasodoig -

gnID simog uopoN

oo

uoon

gnio smog uouoN -
L3 © 500560 £9910 4 660669 69910 1
dQL ZIOA SUSHOA WiON  Uote SBurien o4y

aonoeid PeIOURYD VY fHfu

UJBUMUII] [|BYWelq

T
!

o ey

LULIOOZL X 0071 v W06 54 015 1ROXIR s Jo tipi
o oSt oy o b o wol
1

o qod
1o At
ddes s o)
o e
oo wau wiog
o e

S3LON NOLLYIND3Y ONIGTING

IS D1l 0 UL U
1405 Uaman SEM

1.0} apiu

]

T1° 2
,,.M -
B ﬁu, Z Iﬁ/
1 oue Tl
o =
Zouen * B ﬁl { <
_‘:I. T —
L <
— H
Buymog o N\,\
P oue //
~
[_._
_ \
— o Z A A
amn W ﬁ wms 1 ﬁ.
Ms LTe)
| ™\
ﬁ m | Buibueyo
_/
: -l - ¢ opms zopms \ olpris M m
V AissinN &_v_oe_m 7 # vouony uoissaidx3 soueq
| == - B 1
! kb = = [ N h
n i = ) | uondaoey
- T f—r = : -
i oM. L_Ulwpuz, & : ‘.,_ * N A /,
S s HE //_ L«DibLlo._l._Ullllll\ - [ - — — - Vo — %



00k} W

s ans s

ueid Bunsixa .

QNI SIMOgG UOON

LRI N—
qniD SIMOg UOLON

- ® S00E69 £5910 J £EEE69 €S040 3
0L 110K WV N v S0 oL

00eid pesoueyd Vel i

UIBYMUd|] [|BYuwelq

i ‘\{S.A.M S

Page 75




T L S 00" LA RS

avy avd  pLIL0IS)
o o AL S5
0oLk W
- e

suopens|3 pesodoid

QIO SMOg UOKON

-

uolon

anig Simog UoKON -

Ly © G0969 65910 § €6C69 69910 1
QL JOA OAUSWOA UUON oUE  SBumleyy SuL

o0Roeid PeseHeyD Vel

UIBLMUR|] |[BYWeIq

weponea P snnia W
..4 w

uonens|3 yinog

uoneAs|3 1Sem

Wk |

Page 76

d b
B e
[r— J— um op R oL P uoneAe|3 YUON
_7 1

— | :
5 i

, R

|

oy
[ — sy - uoneAs|3 jseg
I I I

]

e



e & )\
P !

Norton Bowls Club 78 AUG 101k
Planning Application PR \F“ET
21 July 2014 Drrrﬂi‘»“ ) ":{\ET
- aniAsENIE
Supporting Information MA‘NI“"JL’

' 0OKSE (Pue

The proposals involve partial sub-division of Norton Bowls Club, to incorporate Dance
Expression and Brooklyn Pre-Scheol Playgroup. Both users will have separate entrances to
the building. Parking and access for Dance Expression wiil be from the large car park at the
western end of the current building and parking/access to Brooklyn will be from the eastern
end of the building. There will be a new external play area to the north of the building for the
sole use of the playgroup.

Dance Expression will provide 3 No interlinked studios with a reception area/office, changing
facilities and relevant storage.

Brooklyn Pre-scnool Playgroup intends to have a maximum of 30 children (aged approx 2-4} in
attendance initially between 9:00 - 15:30 during weekdays, however their future business
plan may have this extending to 8:15 - 17:00. The Playgroup staff would be in attendance
outside of these hours for preparation and tidying away any activities that ocecur during the
day's session. The Playgroup primarily operates during term times but there may be a desire
to extend this to have occasional sessions during the school helidays in order to give parents
a break. There may also be times when the staff are in attendance but the Playgroup is not
open e.g. staff meetings, preparation for new term etc.

It is envisaged that both these facilities will enhance use of this important recreational
building in Norton.

Bramhall Blenkharn Architects The Maltings Malton YO177DP

Page 77



MMo
BYEYA
NORTON-ON-DERWENT

TOWN COUNCIL

Town Clerk: Mrs R.Tietney Tel/Fax: 01653 695348
Council Chamber and Office
The Old Courthouse
84B Commercial Street
Norton-on-Derwent

QQC,DMMQ{\S APPaosoa l

Malton
North Yorkshire YO17 9ES
18" September 2014 - .y
v

Head of Planning Services, e
Ryedale District Council. \{60? o
Ryedale House, ?\ 5 &* p
Malton. \
YO17 7HH .

-

Dear Sir,

PLANNING APPLICATIONS NORTON-ON-DERWENT
I have to inform you that at its meeting on Tuesday, 16 September 2014 the Town Council
made the following recommendations in respect of the applications listed below:-

14/00890/HOUSE Erection of part two storey/part first floor extension to side and rear
elevations (revised details to refusal) 14/00615/HOUSE dated 24.07.2014.
20 Field View, Norton, Malton, YO17 SAZ
For: Mr & Mrs R M Jaques
RESOLVED Recommend Approval

14/00909%/HOUSE Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include integral garage
with storage above
4 St Peters Crescent, Norton, Malton, YO17 9AN
For: Mr Adam Wiles
RESOLVED Recommend Approval

@ Change of use and alteration of part bowls club building from D2 Use
(Assembly & Leisure) to D1 Use (Non-residential institutions) for use of a
dance school and a pre-school playgroup to include parking and dedicated
outdoor play space for the pre-school playgroup.
Norton Bowls Club, Bowling Lane, Norton, Malton, YO17 8EG
For: Norton Bowls Club (RCLC)
RESOLVED Recommend Approval

14/00921/HOUSE Erection of single storey rear extension and 2.4m high timber fence, re-
rendering of the existing dwelling and widening of existing vehicular access
to the rear following demolition of existing detached garage.
4 St Nicholas Street, Norton, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 9AQ
For: Mr John Todd
RESOLVED Recommend Approval, however Council do query the necessity
of a 2.4m fence where 1.8m would in most circumstances be acceptable.

E. Maik: norton.tc(@btconnect.com

Page 78



Agenda Item 10

Item Number: 10

Application No: 14/00882/HOUSE

Parish: Wombleton Parish Council

Appn. Type: Householder Application

Applicant: Mr J.R. & Mrs M.L. Slater

Proposal: Erection of two storey rear extension following demolition of existing
single storey rear extension.

Location: Lilac Cottage Main Street Wombleton York YO62 7RX

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 6 October 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 24 September 2014

Case Officer: Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No decision made - no objections received
Building Conservation Officer No objection

Neighbour responses: Mr And Mrs D Walker,

SITE:

Lilac Cottage is located within the Wombleton Conservation Area that was designated in 2005. The
property is stone built with a pantile roof.

PROPOSAL:

The proposal seeks to erect a two storey rear extension following the demolition of the existing single
storey rear extension. The proposed two storey cross wing rear extension will measure approximately
3.8m in depth and 7m in width. It is an asymmetric design that will allow for an additional bedroom at
first floor level to the south of the property. The eave height at first floor level will measure 4.2m and
3m at the lower level. The proposed height to the ridge will be approximately 6m.

HISTORY:

14/00400/HOUSE: Application withdrawn in June 2014 - Erection of a two storey rear extension
following the demolition of the existing single storey rear extension.

The withdrawn scheme also sought to erect a two storey cross wing rear extension, with a flat roof
following the demolition of the existing single storey rear extension. It measured approximately 3.8m
in depth and 7.6m in width, with a ridge height of 6m and measuring 5m to the flat roof section. This
plan can be viewed on the Council’s website. The proposal was considered to be unacceptable for a
number of reasons and was subsequently withdrawn.

POLICY:

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 79



Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act 1990

APPRAISAL:

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a two storey rear extension following the demolition
of an existing single storey rear extension. The main considerations to be taken into account when
considering the proposal are:

1. Character and form

ii. Impact upon the character of the Wombleton Conservation Area and the street scene

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenities

iv. Other matters

i. Character and form

The proposed two storey cross wing rear extension will measure approximately 3.8m in depth and 7m
in width. It is an asymmetric design that will allow for additional bedroom at first floor level to the
south of the property. The eave height at first floor level will measure 4.2m and 3m at the lower level.
The proposed height to the ridge will be approximately 6m. The proposed extension will be
constructed of stone and pantiles. The proposed windows on the eastern gable will be constructed of
timber. It is considered that the extension is appropriate and sympathetic to the character and
appearance of the host building in terms of the scale, form and use of materials, complying with
Policy SP16 (Design) and SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) Ryedale Plan — Local
Plan Strategy.

ii. Impact upon the character of the Wombleton Conservation Area

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act 1990 states:

Special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of that area.

Furthermore, SP12 (Heritage) of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy states:

Designated historic assets and their settings, including Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas,
Scheduled Monuments and Registered Parks and Gardens will be conserved and where appropriate,
enhanced.

The Building Conservation Officer was consulted as part of the planning application and has stated
the following:

There are now no objections to the proposed two storey extension. In assessing the area there are
other examples of two storey rear off shots that contribute to the character of the village. Following
discussions with the agent the design has been modified to reflect the comments made on the previous
(withdrawn) application.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 80



The proposed extension has been designed so that it now respects the host property and the
neighbouring property. The southern wall of the new extension now follows the line of the existing
single storey extension which allows the existing gable to remain dominant. The floor plan has been
modified to remove the need for the uncomfortable flat roofed element which allows for a more
traditional pitched-roof design.

Following receipt of these comments from the Building Conservation Officer, it is considered that the
proposed two storey extension preserves the character of the Wombleton Conservation Area.
Although the extension is visible from the street scene, it is considered acceptable in terms of its
design and appearance and in terms of its impact on the character of the street scene.

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenities

The proposed two storey rear extension at ground floor level will project 0.5m further to the east than
the existing extension. The asymmetric design of the property ensures that the highest eave is not on
the boundary with the property ‘Manor Cottage’. The roof slope extends towards Manor Cottage with
an eaves height on the boundary of 3m. The nearest window on the neighbouring property to the
proposed extension serves the kitchen at ground floor level of Manor Cottage. It is considered that the
proposed two storey extension will not result in a material adverse impact upon the amenities of
neighbouring occupiers of Manor Cottage, in terms of the proposal causing a loss of privacy and loss
of light, complying with Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) Ryedale Plan —
Local Plan Strategy.

The proposed window at first floor level on the rear gable will not directly face into any habitable
room of ‘Blue Bell Cottage’. Blue Bell Cottage is located to the approximately 7.5m further to the
east of the proposed extension. It is also therefore considered that the proposed two storey extension
will not result in a material adverse impact upon the neighbouring occupiers of Blue Bell Cottage.

iv. Other matters

It is considered that the proposed two storey will not adversely affect on the existing boundary fence
or vehicular access.

Members should note that this application has been the subject of an objection from the neighbouring
property to the north of the site ‘Manor Cottage’. The full letter of objection may be viewed on the
Council’s website. A summary of the objection includes the following main points:

e  The simple, traditional vernacular form of the host property remains relatively unspoilt and is a
valuable example of small early eighteenth century cottage found within Ryedale’s villages.

e  The proposed two storey extension to the rear would severely harm the essential historic scale
and form of the building, acting as an incongruous and bulky feature that fails to respect the
architectural and historic significance of the principal property by virtue of its height, width and
depth.

e The host property is highlighted within the 2005 adopted Wombleton Conservation Area
Appraisal as a building that makes a positive contribution to the character of the locality. As
required by the statutory legislation within Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of that area.

e The proposed two storey extension would be visible from the street scene of the village and
detract from the character of the Wombleton Conservation Area.

e The proposed two storey extension would severely compromise levels of private amenity,
particularly with regard Manor Cottage, and would regard the direct overlooking of the majority
of the rear garden that would result from the advanced position of the proposed bedroom and
staircase windows to be wholly acceptable.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 81



e  The application provides no evidence to substantiate the claim that the proposed extension would
not compromise vehicular access and use of off street parking bays enjoyed as of right by
neighbouring properties.

The above points have been considered as part of the appraisal.

Members are requested to note that the clerk to Wombleton Parish Council is one of the applicants.
All of the Parish Councillors declared a personal and prejudicial interest with the application and as a
result, no decision was made by Wombleton Parish Council.

v. Conclusions

In light of the above considerations, the proposed two storey rear extension is considered to satisfy the
relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies SP12, SP16, SP19 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan -
Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore
recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to
be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

(NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached
proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the
requirements of the condition discharged)

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall
construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre
square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building.

The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Drawing No: P14 dated June 2014.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 82



Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 83



Ordnance Survey®
0S Sitemap”

— LILAC COTTAGE
Cedars
=T} - Easting
. 466930 @
Northing
- ' 483775
org: 05 Refersnce
_ = A 100022432
.l ' Cottage
B e
Coltage
R - |
[j o e 43.7m
GP -
- i )l o
[ |
|
- - \ Dunkeld
p— - T™E | g:“
- L
" T '| g
[} *'.‘:] |
-I - -’.I r
- OF THE
ikl |

LILAC COTTAGE LOCATION PLAN1:1250 @ A4

Ordnance Survey, (¢) Crown Copyright 2014. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Page 84



Enating
466930

7
Ordnance Survey”® ey

483775

0S Sitemap® et

5
!"E
pon
]
o
= |
B
(]
=

EXTENSION)

OUTBUILDING
(MANNOR COTTAGE)

OUTBUILDING
(BLUE BELL COTTAGE)

HIGHWAY
(WOMBLETON HIGH STREET) ‘]

SHARED ACCESE

OUTBUILDING
(HOLLY TREE COTTAGE)

SHARED ACCESE —/

HOLLY TREE COTTAGE

EXISTING

LILAC COTTAGE BLOCK PLAN — 1:500 © A4

Ordnance Survey, (¢) Crown Copyright 2014, All rights reserved Licence number 100022432

Page 85



B 0ld 1078569

71 NV

- - Sod _

NOILJ3S 8 SNOILVATI3
SNV7d ONILSIX3

NOLIT1gWOM
39V110D JvIT

43LVTIS SHKW 8 AW

49 2904
FUHSKRIO HLNON
30ISHOOWABNIN
LNV ATIL
B 00 3HL

50109 NIIUSOIOW MAM W
7702 NIRIIOIOWOSIINONT 3
2528715010 'L
QLW N33O HOMOW

IVAQYddY

S$321A19S (BUN}DA}IYDJE

usaJbionow

- [sod| WAONIAY INIITO v
- [sod| 3NSSI ONINNVId 38d (712092 | 8
- |sod| ANITTIVM ALYVA [ 71°60°20 | O

TNIGNLILYT

NOILO3S

WOONHLYE

WOOY
ONILLIS

'
WooNa38

7

800714 1S¥ld

NVd

R ——
3NIT TIVM ALavd

|
WO0Na38

]

WOONHLYE ) M

NIHOLIN

WO0Y
ONILLIS

EZ

ALIILN i T

N Gm;m v
NOILVAI 3

i

3N TIM ATevd

NOILVATTE

1
|
| 7
[
_
_
_
_

NN TIVM ALEV]

Page 86




2 71d__ 1078569

_< 13 | Om“_ awos) ..w_ ZDD; INIGNLISNOT TVNIGNLILVT
— | - [ sod_ NOTRES\S NOILO3S
SNOILD3S 8 SNOILVAT S M
SNV 1d d3S0d0¥d

NIHOLIN WOOY
N3HOLIN ONILLIS

z z !
Wo0¥a38 Wooyasa Wooyazg

D |

NOISSIWNENS-3Y
ONINNV1d

NOL31dWOM
39VLL10D JvIIT

4

INIGNV

_

NOLIEWOM !
140803AY !
YIALVIS SHW B AW |
|

I

|

WAOYddY

AN 03 usaiBioljow mmm

An-es-us

TISTEV-1SL10 1sv3
U AT —— :_|||zoﬁ<>m:m_mu

Jorjowdsssnbus

Y IHSHYOA HL1LY¥YON T T T “
301590 O0MWASENY I _
.
13dVHD G710 3HL = | ] N |
_— / /
y < . I
uuuuuuuu .
Ll —— 1 WL
N3IJYDYOITOMW [— — —
| e——— = _
T < 7 Al
N — A |
e — — ]
- [S9d| NSS! AYYNIWIINd .
- [S9d| 'SNOISNIWIQ —
- [S9d| SIONVHI NOILVYLSINIS =

§ — 1

4008 A ’ 2901 GNN0YY
! z<._n_. &> * NV 1d

i
= |/ B -
L

|
Woo¥a38

WOOM
ONILLIS

e Pt

— N [m=)ks

E— NEFCNE oniow Hoowi1va

— k|- 1) - L e = al
- AlES AN - T p—

3W0LS $3AV3 _|

R |
e

Page 87




Design & Access Statement

Lilac Cottage — Wombleton

Lilac Cottage is a stone under pantile terraced cottage in the village of Wombleton. The property is
currently a residential dwelling and will remain so after development of the proposed scheme. The
dwelling is now and will remain one unit. The cottage currently occupies a building footprint of 53
square metres. Under the proposed scheme this footprint would increase to 59 square metres. This
represents an increase in footprint of 6 square metres. The existing single storey rear extension will
be replaced with a two storey extension providing much needed bathroom & bedroom
accommoeodation at first floor level.

Lilac Cottage falls within the Wombleton conservation area but has no listing status and is south of
the Morth York Moors National Park. Every attempt has been made to keep development at the rear
of the property and to maintain the existing street scene.

The proposed scheme remains a two bedroom property relocating the bathroom to the first floor
and expanding the existing kitchen area. The applicant was keen not to over develop the cottage and
attempt to include a third bedroom. However, as the property stands the second bedroom, kitchen
and bathroom are unfit for purpose.

Care has been taken to use existing materials in the construction of the new extension. Traditional
stane walls with a pantile roof are the applicant’s preferred materials of choices.

Access to the property will remain unchanged with personnel doors present at the front and rear.
The new staircase complies with current building regulations and replaces the existing stair which
the applicant believes to be a hazard with very high rises, shallow goings and restricted head height.

It is worthy of note that the new tenant is visually impaired and will benefit from a full size modern
stair, ground floor WC and a bathroom within close proximity of the bedrooms.

For the avoidance of doubt, the existing parking arrangements will be unaffected by the proposed
scheme.

Page 88



.C(\ o
CC D € L\S\ \ Q&

%

Y YOMBLETON

Mrs M L Slater, Parish Clerk.

i ‘-"_"l, BEER SRS Y Ryecroft,
Main Street,

Wombleton,

- North Yorkshire.

- Y062 7RX.

MAANAG v Tel 01751 432272.
vies Email louise @wombleton.wanadoo.co.uk

FAQ Karen Hood, Senior Technical Officer.
Ryedale District Council,
Ryedale House,
Malton,
North Yorkshire.
Y017 7HH.
4™ september 2014.
Dear Sirs,

Re Application 14/00882/HOUSE Mr and Mrs Slater 2 storey rear extension following
demolition of existing single storey rear extension at Lilac Cottage, Main Street Wombleton.

| refer to the above application which was on the Agenda to be considered by my Council at the
Parish Council Meeting on Tuesday 2™ September. |am one of the applicants in this
application and all Councillors declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the application. As
a result no decision could be made on the application.

My Council has received no objections to this application either written or verbal.

Yours faithfully,

Lowise Slater.

Clerk to Wombleton Parish Council.

Mrs M L Slater, Parish Clerk, Ryecroft, Main Street, Wombleton, YO62 7RX
Tel 01751 432272.

Councillors: Mrs S Sharples (Chairman), Mr B Grice {Vice Chairman), Mrs A Oliver, Mr R Colley and Mrs S Turnbull.

Page 89



Agenda Item 11

Item Number: 11

Application No: 14/00883/HOUSE

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Appn. Type: Householder Application

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Smith

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to the west and north
elevations and entrance porch to the south elevation.

Location: Nesslyn West End Sheriff Hutton YO60 6SH

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 7 October 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 22 September 2014

Case Officer: Rachel May Ext: 329

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No views received to date

Highways North Yorkshire No objection - recommend conditions

Neighbour responses: Elaine Nelson, Mrs Deborah Kidds, Mrs Shelley

Fairclough, Mr Michael Charlton-Weedy, Dr Don
Pomfret, Mr David Whisker, Mrs Carol Brough, Mrs
Sally Bellwood,

The application site is comprised of a detached, two storey residential dwelling and associated curtilage.
The site lies within the Development Limits of Sheriff Hutton. The plot is relatively long and narrow,
with the dwelling sitting towards the western boundary. The dwelling has a modest front garden with
considerably more amenity space to the rear. Nesslyn has brick built walls, with a clay pan tile roof. It
is the only house on the street which is gable fronted.

PROPOSAL:

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a part two storey/part single storey extension to the
west and north elevations and entrance porch to the south elevation.

POLICY:

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP16 - Design
Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

HISTORY:
14/00481/HOUSE - Application withdrawn in June 2014 for the erection of part two storey/part single

storey extension to the west and north elevations and entrance porch to the south elevation. The loss of
one parking space was considered to be detrimental to the application.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 90



APPRAISAL:

The main considerations when assessing the application are;
1. Character and Form

ii. Impact upon the Neighbouring Amenity

iii. Impact upon the Street Scene

iv. Conclusion

i. Character and Form

Following the demolition of the existing car port, a two storey extension is proposed to the side and a
single storey extension to the rear. The two storey element will project off the west elevation and will
measure 3.7 metres in width, and 7.3 metres in length. The eaves and ridge height will continue in line
with the existing dwelling.

The lean - to, single storey rear element will measure 4 metres in depth, and 9.5 metres in width. The
height to the eaves is 2.5 metres, and the ridge height is 3.5 metres.

Whilst the extension is large it is proposed to be set back approximately 0.5 metres from the front wall
of the existing dwelling. As a result it will appear slightly subservient when viewed within the wider
street scene. It is therefore considered the size and scale of the proposal, on balance, is appropriate and
in compliance with SP16 Design and SP20 Generic Development Management Issues of the Ryedale
Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

ii. Impact upon the Neighbouring Amenity

An objection was received from the occupiers of Bertram House' stating that the development would
detrimentally impact on the amount of light entering their property. A sunlight analysis has been
submitted for Officers consideration. Whilst the extension will project closer to the boundary shared
with the immediate neighbour, the sunlight analysis only demonstrates an effect on this property during
the early mornings, between January and March. The east elevation of the neighbouring property,
which is considered to be affected, only has one small window in this elevation which does not serve a
primary room. On balance, the impact demonstrated is not considered to be sufficient to warrant a
refusal.

Also, there is approximately 5 metres between the extension extending along the boundary and 'Bertram
House'. Therefore the presence of the extension at this distance is not considered to be intrusive or
overbearing.

The occupiers of the property known as 'Highway House' (located opposite the site) have stated that the
roof light on the south elevation will look directly into their front bedroom and living room. The
distance between the two properties is approximately 38 metres. All the properties along this road
having windows facing on to the road, including "Nesslyn's" existing south elevation which currently
has 3 windows. In this set of circumstances officers consider that the roof light will not have a material

adverse impact on the amenity of present or future occupants of neighbouring dwellings.

Objections have also been received raising parking provision as a concern. The current plan seeks to
increase the parking provision from 1 off - road parking space to 2 off - road parking spaces. There have
been no objections to this proposal from the Highway Authority, and the proposal is therefore
considered acceptable.

Members should note that this application has been subject to several objections, and a petition of 25
signatures. The full letter can be viewed on the Council's website. A summary of the objection includes
the following points:

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 91



e The parking facilities are inadequate and the extension will result an increase of on - street parking,
subsequently restricting access to the properties on West End

e Obstruction of sunlight: the development would have an adverse impact on the property west of the
application site, known as 'Bertram House'

e The roof lights proposed on the south elevation will overlook into the front bedroom and living room
of the property known as 'Highway House'

The relevant points above have been considered as part of the appraisal above and the proposal is
considered to be in compliance with SP20 Generic Development Management Issues as outlined in the

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

iii. Impact upon the Street Scene

In terms of street scene, there is a mix of brick construction, with a few rendered properties in the
surrounding vicinity. The proposal seeks to render the dwelling which is a significant change the
external appearance of dwelling.

Whilst the rendered side extension will be seen from public viewpoints there are a variety of external
facing materials used on properties in the village. On balance the proposed materials are considered
acceptable.

Officers had raised some concerns with the design of the roof proposed on the porch.

A simpler design omitting the 'step' in the roof line was suggested but the applicant has confirmed that
they wish the application to be determined as originally proposed. This element is a relatively minor
feature and, on balance, the application is recommended for approval.

The rear element of the extension will not easily be seen from any public viewpoints and therefore is not
considered to be detrimental to the visual amenity of the surrounding area.

iv. Conclusion
There have been 2 letters of support received from 'Holly Lodge' and 2 Stonelands Close'.

There have been no objections received from Sheriff Hutton Parish Council or the Highway Authority,
but several conditions have been recommended regarding verge crossing construction requirements;
parking for the dwelling remaining clear at all times; and details of the on-site parking, on-site storage
and construction traffic during the development to be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to
the commencement of works.

In light of the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed development is on balance
acceptable and would comply with both Local and National Policies. Therefore the recommendation is
one of approval.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to be
used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 92



(NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached
proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the
requirements of the condition discharged)

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Proposed Plans and Elevations (drawing no: 103, rev F)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 93



TR Ty 12 fsdaid v v p
AR ORISR ok | AL B o 95 P08 sl .
s Bz o un sepoup o2
ONINNYId| 00t
A i P R
osziil BE0'EL0Z
ann e s
ELZLYE [
...... nam
ue|d uoneooT]
Samtin
UOHNY Juiays ‘ukjssen
@snoy Bunsixg o) SUCNEJB)Y PUE UDISUBIXT

WIws saw 9 I
ars

.....
JJJJJ




Sy Ty 8 Al 94 AR o B0 8 B L
o 48 |0 AL PAAE) 39 B iy e s

v B

0024 00z

" aq e bz h s
ONINNYId| ¥ Lok
arvaa aniy a st B
00z:1 BE0°ELOZ
away e e
m F. N r.VN BLCTTNO T 2
AT A o Ayrduso |
pesodold pue Bunsig se suejd 5o0|g
Bmp
UOHNH JlBYS ‘UAjssan
asnop Buis/x3 o} SUOREIBIY PUE UoISUBNT
Jiu'nd|
UHWS SIA R N
e
Sars £ L
e
a7
i
) moes
B S
ety
" o
| we popuswe uosineid Bunjed| ¥

pesodoid Se ue|d 320|g Bunsix3 se ue|d oolg

Page 95



“UONH JuBys ‘uksseN|
88110 BUYSIX3 0} SUOREIBHY PUE LOISUBIXT

Q3S0d0¥d SV NOILYAZT3 HLION

03S0d0¥d SV NV'1d ¥OO14 ONNOHO ]

T AT T

oo

T s

@ abuno

a3asi/c

Q3SOd0¥d SV NOI.

|
|
|
\
LVAITEHLNOS |
f
|
|
\
|

apnsug




o OV o o o s s 3o B L.
45 e o A O 4 B A O S

ONINNVd| ¥V 204

s e ) s tmers

0Lk 8E0'€L0Z

£ maur sofo

£1°21'60 prrmwe—

IS SN L S N L

* suoneasf3 pue sueld Bunsix3
aman

“UORNH JuIoyS “UhisseN
asnoy Bups|x3 o) suopessly pue uojsuaxg
oo

Unwis "SI B N

wonmiosan  INN
iameo
sozo 4 swoavopenappposmy | v

ONILSIX3 SV NOILVAIT3 1SIM

1

ONILSIX3 SV NOILVATTI HLYON

ONLLSIX3 SV NOILVYATT3 1SV

.

il

[l

ONILSIX3 SV NOILLVAFT3 HLNOS

ONILSIX3 SV NV1d ¥OOT4 ANNOHD

== V\:J%

) ]

r, Il
u abuno N __

age 97

ONILLSIX3 SV NV'1d 40074 1S

P




rL \'\l\ o \( O CJGSQL:(\OJ\

Y9
Glenys Yates {
From: Nigel Knapton [nigel.knapton@townandparish.co.uk]
Sent: 20 September 2014 14:54
To: Development Management
Subject: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council
Hi

Please find below the comment from this morning’s meeting.

a. 14/00883/HOUSE - Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to the west and
north elevations and entrance porch to the south elevation at Neslyn, West End, Sheriff
Hutton for Mr & Mrs Smith. No objections.

Kind regards RYED ALE DM

22 SEP 2

OPMENT
L@EMENT

Nigel Knapton
Clerk to Sheriff Hutton Parish Council DE\IE
4 Central Buildings, Easingwald, York YOB1 3A8 MAN A

T 07779 994712
£ nigel.knapton@townandparish.co.uk

5*1 Piease consider the environment before printing

Page 98



Agenda Item 12

Item Number: 12

Application No: 14/00889/HOUSE

Parish: Wombleton Parish Council

Appn. Type: Householder Application

Applicant: Mr Steve Gridley

Proposal: Retention of single storey extension to north elevation, boundary wall to

east elevation and external cladding and installation of 15n0. solar panels on
the west roofslope and flat roof
Location: Green View Page Lane Wombleton Kirkbymoorside YO62 7SE

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 9 October 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 24 September 2014

Case Officer: Helen Bloomer Ext: 328
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Object

Highways North Yorkshire No objection

Highways North Yorkshire Formal response to follow
Building Conservation Officer No objection

Neighbour responses: None

SITE:

The application site is comprised of a semi detached dwellinghouse with a modest curtilage. It is located
on the corner of Page Lane and is within the Wombleton Conservation Area.

PROPOSAL:

The application is seeking the retention of a single storey extension to the north elevation, dwarf
boundary wall to the east elevation and the fixing of the external thermal cladding. The agent has
requested that the proposed 15 solar panels on the west elevation also be included within this
application. The solar panels would be attached to both the flat and pitched roof and although they have
been included within the description of the application this is for information purposes as, on their own,
they constitute ‘permitted development’ under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (Amendment) (England) Order 2008 Part 40 Class A.

POLICY:

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 99



HISTORY:

The retrospective application has come about as a result of an ongoing enforcement investigation. There
is no other relevant Planning history for the site.

APPRAISAL:

1) Impact on the Wombleton Conservation Area
ii) Impact on Residential Amenity

iii) Impact on Highway Safety

iv) Impact on the Wombleton Conservation Area

1) Impact on the Wombleton Conservation Area

Greenview lies within the Wombleton Conservation Area, which was designated in 2005. The area has
a varied streetscape with mixed property types including cottages, bungalows and larger detached
properties. These also demonstrate a mixed palette of materials including; brick, stone render and
painted masonry. Wombleton Parish Council has objected to the application as they consider the
property; as a result of the works both retrospective and proposed, would be out of character with the
Wombleton Conservation Area. It is the Building Conservation Officers opinion, however, that the
scale of the single storey side extension is appropriate to the scale of the host dwelling reflecting a
typical small scale domestic extension, typical of the Conservation Area. From Page Lane the extension
appears subservient because it is also set back from the front elevation.

Prior to the installation of the thermal cladding Greenview had a white painted brick exterior. It is
therefore considered that it’s current appearance which has a white rendered appearance is appropriate
in its context and that it reflects the character of the Wombleton Conservation Area. Due to the proposed
siting of the solar panels, they would comply with the conditions as set out within Part 40 Class A of the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (England) Order 2008.

i1) Impact on Residential Amenity

This application is seeking to retain works already carried out. Therefore any impact on residential
amenity is already apparent. It is not considered that the works have a material adverse impact on the
residential amenity of any of the neighbouring properties. Wombleton Parish Council has raised
concern that the cladding appears to encroach onto Keswick House to the south. This was not apparent
from the officer's site visit, and no correspondence has been received from the occupants of Keswick
House to this effect. However even if it transpires that there had been encroachment, then this would be
a civil issue and should bear no weight in the assessment of the application on its planning merits..

iii) Impact on Highway Safety

The Highway Authority has raised no objection to the application, nor have they recommended any
conditions to be attached if Members are minded to grant planning permission. Wombleton Parish
Council has raised concern that the coping placed on the top of the boundary wall encroaches on to the
highway. Whilst the boundary wall is within the applicant's curtilage, the coping overlaps the boundary
wall by approximately 1 inch. It is not considered in light of the Highway Authority consultation
response that this minor overlap impacts on the safe functioning of the highway. At the time of writing
no other written representations had been received.

However Wombleton Parish Council has also raised objection that this application is retrospective and
also wanted their opinion that Wombleton should not be designated as a Conservation Area to be
known. As Members will be aware these matters are not material planning considerations and shall bear
no weight in assessing the application presented.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 100



In light of the above considerations, the development is considered to satisfy the relevant policy criteria
outlined within the National Planning Policy Framework and Polices SP12, SP16, SP19 and SP20 of the
Local Plan Strategy. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 101



_EE' E"u“w"g“ 6 7 getmapping.com
GREENVIEW/ - ACCATIoN Teran]

Blpracnn i WAGHE B i QB (E GrONGING wiltaut The | SewwrrTR
o paemispon of Dransnoe Surey
o et e e g i.—::?—-n'f
s g OF e oG
Survn TN NEIONS MBDKNG BQENCy O Greal Bt Metres
Tre repressnton of & s RO o0 (R 6§ N0 Switenon
of @ nghn of way
Suppeed 8y
The regresarmEnon of SeElures §S R8s B N0 SVIDenos of § Cantre ooomhnmey E
O Oy L Lcwnne NurhDes |00 s

Page 102



/1 |
'——“—-.q_
—— P |
| A Vi
E - - - s
:: /
et [T
'H'l -:HJH l:l 4] .
L | | .
|[ | _/{ 4
F 8
|
\
\
\
\
\'_-";,
" \
\ %
\ LY

_Project: Greenview , Page Lane, Wombleton
Block and roof
2044 Scale: 1:200 @ A4
- PLI148/01 e
not scale — onsite.
with
Design Lund Court House Nawton York
T 01751 430832 M 07768 960326 E
info@acarchitecturaldesign co Uk
www dearchitecturaldesian.co uk

Page 103



= =

—

EERm—— TS e

E T AR

e — e -~ e
= .
P +

mpl——

h

S . Y

] L L 4
| (ALl 4 . ’

1||'E""f'”'“ kb
\E‘I‘_‘! i1 of
(1} F

GREENVIEN

o Pree e \ ‘

> ]
F
o
eV
e
2 -
Ll -
&£ r
N

A &

Title: Block and roof plan
Date: August 2014

Drawing number: PLI149/04 remains
with the DC
DC Architectural Design Lund Court House Nawton York YOG2 712
T 01751 430932 M 07768 960326 E
. ign.co.uk

info@dcarchitecturaldesign
www dearchitecturaldesign.co.uk

Scale: 1:200 @ A4 |

Page 104




|

Z12 ZIOA Y04 UDWMEN 88noj Unod pun ufiseq 1432y 50

' 05 uB|SapBINIDBILUDIEOD MMM
Hn-o ubisapieaniosiiyaesp@oju
92096 89.40 W ZEGOEY LSZLO L

__sujeway WBuAdos "eis Lo suoisUBLIP || ¥29Y3 - 8§eOS jou o]

‘uliseq (eaMoeNYDIY DA BUI UjIM

Z0/6V1/1d Hagquinu Bumeiq

Y@ 0g eies

suejd BUpsixg oL

“UGIBIUION, "9UE] oBEd 'MalAUBaID 309]0.d

Y Aco2a12g

NI




AN 0D UDISEP|RINJIDYYIIBID MMM
¥ pa ubjsapieinios)ioreop@oju
3 97096 B9LL0 W ZEGOEY LGZLO L )
ZLE ZYOA WIOA UDIMEN 8SNOH Jinog pun ubisaq (eanjoeiyaly Da
‘ubleag |EINIOANSIY 5F Uy tim
sujewal Jybuddos ‘ays uo 1P 1€ ¥98yo ~ 8jEE JoU O

G0B¥Id equinu Bupmeig

oY @ 051 ‘ajeog

suBld i

'
uo)B|qIIGH "BuUET ebied ' mejausalD 390[0id

o4

at N e g

|




Ao uby i M
ynoa ubisapiEinospIEopEO
3 926096 89410 W ZEGOEY LGLIO L

Z1L ZI0A WOA UoEN BsnoH Pnoy pun ulijseq [eimoajyay oa
‘uBisaq [edmOayyaly DO O i
wbuAdan “ans uo 1P ||8 }294D ~ 8|9S Jou 0Q
7 TO/6YLId Hequinu Bumeig

_ £V @ 00}:} 935 10z Jsnbny 918

suolieAs(3 Bunsixg L

NOUVYNEE OO




o

00 uBisepRImpaIYIEIpBIojU|
3 022006 89420 W ZE80Er L5210 1
Z14 Z90A WOA UoEN 8SNoH Jnag pun ubisaq [einjasjiyay og

sujewai Jyblkdo:

‘UB|SaQ [EIMIayyIIy DA o i

D “8fs uo 1P |12 %498Y5 — 8jeds jou og

£V @ 00171 0je95

suoneAs|3 :epiL

UalBquio, “aue ebied * MejALBeIH Jaslod |

Y 3
(]
St Wi

; e

™NOUV G 1S3

iﬂﬁmﬂvl

Page 108

| E—

b e
A |
[

7 \\.H\\?ﬁ

mr
i

g o



Design and Access Statement: Greenview, Page Lane, Wombleton YO62 7SE

Works: Single storey extension North Elevation and boundary wall to the East elevation &
solar panels on the roof. Date : 11/08/2014

The works have already been undertaken. The application is for retrospective planning
permission except the solar panels

Site , Location & Description before works; Greenview_is located at the corner of Page Lane, to the
North is a driveway accessing Rosebud Cottage .The East elevation is the principle elevation facing
Page Lane. A strip of outdoor space ran between the drive of Rosebud Cottage and Greenview, this
was defined by a low a timber boundary fence. A narrow gap separates Greenview from Rosebud
Cottage to the West, which is used for bins and outdoor storage. The South elevation is joined to
Keswick House. There is a pantile roof to the front and a flat roof to the rear. The walls are rendered
white with a black upstand at the base. The windows and doors are Upvc — white windows and a
black front door.

Proposed Works: The works have already been undertaken. The applicant was under the impression
the works came under permitted development.

The property was finished in a white render, this has been renewed.

The works comprise of a single storey entrance extension to the North elevation. The extension
remains within the boundary of the property replacing some of the outdoor space. It sits back from
the front elevation so doesn’t detract from the principle elevation or compromise visibility onto the
highway. The materials match the existing property, white rendered walls, Upvc white windows and
doors. Front door is in black.

A dwarf wall has been constructed to the front (East) elevation along the boundary. it is a render
finish matching the property walls, with a black coping top and skirting. The wall was constructed to
prevent traffic driving passed the cottage too closely. The road Page Lane turns a corner at this point
and is narrow; when traffic builds up it passes very closely to the front elevation, causing potential
damage to the property and vehicles. The dwarf wall defines the boundary and creates a clear visual
line for users of the highway.

Solar Panels: are proposed on the West elevation; 5 panels in a row on the pitch and 2 rows of 5 laid
ftat on the flat roof. The data sheet for the panels has been included in this application.

Access: The scheme does not change the parking, the applicant has off road parking remotely, and
these arrangements remain in place.

Surface water is taken to the existing surface water drain

Prepared by: Danielle Arkwright

DC Architectural Design Lund Court House Nawton York YO62 7TZ
T 01751 430932 M 07768 960326 E info@dcarchitecturaldesign.co. uk
www.dcarchitecturaldesign.co.uk

Page 109



Ry

NYOMBLETON

Mrs M L Slater, Parish Clerk.
Ryecroft,

Main Street,

Wombleton,

North Yorkshire.

Y062 7RX.

Tel 01751 432272.

Email louise @wombleton.wanadoo.co.uk

FAO Karen Hood, Senior Technical C{fﬁcer““ AL T MY M
Ryedale District Council, - L
Ryedale House,
Malton, 10270 2y
North Yorkshire.
Y017 7HH. i o
s LN gt September 2014.
Dear Sirs,

Re Application 14/00889/HOUSE Mr S Gridley, single storey extension to north elevation and
boundary wall to east elevation (retrospective) and installation of 15 no solar panels on the
west roof slope and flat roof at Green View, Page Lane, Wombleton.

| refer to the above application which was considered by my Council at the Parish Council
Meeting on Tuesday 2" September. My Council recommended rejection of this application.
The property is out of character with other properties and is situated within the Conservation
Area. There is no reference to the cladding in the application ~ you informed us that this
required permission in a Conservation Area. Furthermore Councillors are concerned that the
cladding encroaches on the property at the left hand side (Keswick House, Page Lane) it is
unclear whether permission for this encroachment has been sought from the owner of the
property. The wall to the front of the property is not in keeping with the surrounding area and
the coping placed on the top of the wall appears to encroach onto the public highway which is
also a concern. The number of solar panels appears to be very high, Councillors think they
would be intrusive and therefore out of character.

| have been asked to pass on my Council’s deep concern about yet another retrospective
application. Itis apparent to Councillors that residents who do follow the correct procedures
and apply for permission are being dealt with on occasion in a punitive and unfair manner
including incurring extra costs. Others who flout the rules and fail to apply for the required
permission seem to be allowed to do virtually as they please. Councillors and residents feel
that everyone should be dealt with in the same manner and currently this is not happening.

Mrs M L Slater, Parish Clerk, Ryecroft, Main Street, Wombleton, YO62 7RX
Tel 01751 432272.

Councillors: Mrs S Sharples {Chairman), Mr B Grice (Vice Chairman), Mrs A Oliver, Mr R Colley and Mrs S Turnbull.

Page 110



My Council is on the front line and constantly having to listen to residents’ complaints that
planning applications and unauthorised development are being dealt with in what appears to
be at best a haphazard and at worst an unfair basis.

You are well aware that neither my Council nor the majority of residents have any desire for
this village to be designated a Conservation Area but you have stated that it will remain one.
Surely it is therefore up to you to enforce it properly. This does not seem to be happening at
the moment.

To summarise my Councii recommends rejection,

Yours faithfully,

Lowise Slater.

Clerk to Wombleton Parish Council.

Mrs M L Slater, Parish Clerk, Ryecroft, Main Street, Wombleton, Y062 7RX
Tel 01751 432272.

Councillors: Mrs S Sharples {Chairman), Mr B Grice (Vice Chairman), Mrs A Oliver, Mr R Colley and Mrs S Turnbull.

Page 111



Agenda Iltem 13

Item Number: 13

Application No: 14/00909/HOUSE

Parish: Norton Town Council

Appn. Type: Householder Application

Applicant: Mr Adam Wiles

Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include integral garage
with storage above

Location: Newlands 4 St Peters Crescent Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17
9AN

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 14 October 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 16 October 2014

Case Officer: Rachel May Ext: 329
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Recommend approval

Highways North Yorkshire No objection

Neighbour responses: Fiona Delphine And Geof Dudding,
SITE:

Newlands is a detached dwelling situated on St Peters Crescent, which is a predominantly residential
area. The site lies within the Development Limits of Norton, as defined within the Ryedale Local
Plan; and is within an archaeological sensitive area.

PROPOSAL:

Planning permission is sought for the erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include
integral garage with storage above. The extension incorporates a garage with storage above to the
side, and a garden room to the rear. At its highest point the garage roof is 5 metres above ground

level, and the parapet wall of the garden room is 3.1 metres above ground level.

Amended plans were negotiated by Officers in order to reduce the impact of the scheme and these are
subject of re-consultation locally which expires on 16™ October 2014.

HISTORY:
There is no planning history relevant to this application.
POLICY:

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP16 - Design
Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 112



APPRAISAL:

The main considerations when assessing this application are;
i.  Character and Form
ii.  Impact upon the Street Scene
iii.  Impact upon Residential Amenity
iv.  Conclusion

1. Character and Form

Original Scheme

An original scheme was submitted for a larger extension. This was the subject of a neighbour
objection from the occupiers of ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ raising material planning considerations
including scale and proximity to their boundary.

A revised scheme, dropping the eaves and ridge height, was submitted to the Local Planning
Authority in order to address these concerns. The occupiers of ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ have however
stated their objections remain in light of the revised scheme. Both letters can be viewed on the
Councils’ website.

Concerns were also raised regarding the size and location of the garage, compromising the off street
parking facility. Following consultation with the Highway Authority, it is considered the garage
would be able to accommodate a car inside and no objections are raised from NYCC Highways on
highways grounds.

The Proposal

The proposed development is in the form of a single storey, side and rear extension. Following the
demolition of the existing detached timber asbestos garage on the west elevation, an attached garage
is proposed on almost exactly the same footprint, with additional storage space above. The garage
will project approximately 2.8 metres off the existing side elevation, and will be approximately 6
metres in length. Originally the eaves height was 3.5 metres, and a ridge height of approximately 6
metres. However the revised plans propose the eaves height at approximately 3 metres, and 5 metres
to the ridge. The extension is set back from the existing dwelling by 0.3 metres.

The rear extension will extend 3.8 metres along the boundary, and will be 6.5 metres in length. The
height of the flat roof was originally set at 3.3 metres, but is now proposed at approximately 3.1
metres.

Overall, the scale and height of the development has been designed to ensure the extension will
appear subservient when viewed within the wider street scene. It is also considered that it would not
dominate the front elevation of the dwelling. It is considered the size and scale of the proposal is, on
balance, appropriate and in compliance with Policies SP16 Design and SP20 Generic Development
Management Issues of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

The proposed construction materials are brick and concrete pan tiles. These materials will match the
hosting dwelling, and are therefore considered acceptable. Timber painting bi-folding doors are
proposed on the north elevation and a steel painted door is proposed for the garage on the south
elevation.

ii.  Impact upon Street Scene

The application site and the surrounding plots are long and narrow, but there is no distinct housing
pattern or spacing around the dwellings. In terms of the street scene, there is a mixture of types and
sizes of detached and semi-detached dwellings in the crescent. ‘2 St Peters Crescent’ has developed
on the boundary shared with ‘4 St Peters Crescent’. ‘6 and 8 St Peters Crescent’ sit centrally in the
plot, and is a pair of symmetrical semi-detached houses.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 113



In terms of impact on the street scene, the side extension compromising the garage would be seen
from public viewpoints and is considered to be in keeping with the surrounding area. It is therefore
considered the extension will not to be detrimental to the visual amenity of the surrounding area. The
rear element of the extension would not significantly impact on the street scene as it will not be easily
seen from any public viewpoints.

iii.  Impact upon Residential Amenity

An objection was received from the occupiers of property of ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ to the original
scheme stating the development would detrimentally impact on the amount of natural light entering
their property, and that the design being inappropriate for the character of the neighbourhood.

Following a re-consultation with regard to the revised plans the occupiers of, ‘6 St Peters Crescent’
stated there objection remains. There has been no response from Norton Town Council. However, the
revised plans are considered to take into account the previous objection with regard to scale and
siting.

Whilst the development will slightly increase the amount of the massing of building along the
boundary shared with the immediate neighbour, the reduce pitch of the garage roof and existing fence
will help mitigate any adverse impacts.

In addition, the west elevation extending along the boundary will not feature any fenestration. The
side of 6 St Peters Square does have 3 small windows, however none are considered to serve primary
rooms and therefore the presence of the extension within approximately 2.5 metres (as amended) is
not considered to be intrusive.

On balance, it is considered there will not be a substantial material adverse impact on the amenity of
the neighbours and therefore this application complies with SP20 Generic Development Management
Issues of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

iv. Conclusion

At the time of writing, there has been one objection received from ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ to the
original and revised proposals. The full letters can be viewed on the Council’s website along with a
response from the applicant, Mr Wiles to the issues raised.

The Highway Authority has no objections to the proposal and Norton Town Council recommends
approval for this application.

In light of the above considerations, the proposed side and rear extension is considered to satisfy the
relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies SP16 Design; SP19 Presumption in Favour of
Sustainable Development; SP20 Generic Development Management Issues of the Ryedale Plan —
Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore
recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 114



2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Existing and Proposed Plans and Elevations: revised. (drawing ref: MG/1562/PL/2014)
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to
be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

(NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached
proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the
requirements of the condition discharged)

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policies SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 115



B
\ A
e

e

ek “ﬂ. 200
\* !'«-ﬂ.. QFMENT
) AR GEN ENT

Page 116



FI0E/Td/195T/01

0y buiodg
PTCE/E0/2T

8100

C0s/T 303§

pasinay

K¥1d BLI5

JRERLIN
uzgbuet
JU92581) sI828d 15 ¥

E53IPRY

SITTNY
oy

25wy / WD
INIWID
INIWAO

4102 9NV

a2V

e |

-

N

YNYIN
12A30
61

AAd

P W

HLIS JES040¥d

NWT

0s

{pR232R UnBE)
pegEy [ouep aq

N¢Td TLIS ONILSIXE

Page 117




PT0Z/Td/TIST/OR oy bumyg

o awg

paspiay

o) spewenssas |y b

o 0301wl

suotaeasts
oue suerd pasodozd pue burasTXKE
A

T00p U073
anoqe Adoueo Juswade(daz pue sberes
‘uotsuazxe Aox03s 2TBUTS pasodord

uoazoN
peoy wo3buzy
us0803) 519394 35 §

sty

SOTTH 'Y IW
Wy

s [ oy

NOIIWAFTE ISIM

NOLIYAZTE 1SM

B —

e
n.ulﬁu“_ = £
o e

SR
1

]

NOIIWATTE HL¥ON

N¥Id ¥00Td 1IS¥IE

woa7Psg

- |

g

NOILWAZTE Isvd

N¥Id ¥00TZ QKNO¥D

ooy BupaTT

sy / g

aqasododd
N¥Id ¥COTd ANNCYD
ONILSIXE
NOIZWAATE HLNOS
“““ _ =M
. 01T
}— 7 =
a3s0do¥dd

NOIIVAZTZE HINCS

|

ONILSIXH

Page 118




NORTON-ON-DERWENT
TOWN COUNCIL

Town Clerk: Mrs R Tierney Tel/Fax: 01653 695348
Council Chamber and Office
The Old Courthouse
84B Commercial Street
Norton-on-Derwent
Malton
North Yorkshire YO17 9ES

18™ September 2014

Head of Planning Services,

Ryedale District Council. W
Ryedale House, i ) = Cf\{(
Malten. - cs‘":k"—'f‘ WO X
YO17 7HH ~ W R
PR WO

N, [ V ’- V

Dear Sir, ?,’1 v\\"’?ﬁ
e

PLANNING APPLICATIONS NORTON-ON-DERWENT -

[ have to inform you that at its meeting on Tuesday, 16 September 2014 the Town Council
made the following recommendations in respect of the applications listed below:-

14/00890/HOUSE Erection of part two storey/part first floor extension to side and rear
elevations (revised details to refusal) 14/00615/HOUSE dated 24.07.2014.
20 Field View, Norton, Malton, YO17 9AZ
For: Mr & Mrs R M Jaques
RESOLVED Recommend Approval

14/00909/HOUS Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include integral garage
with storage above

4 St Peters Crescent, Norton, Malton, YO17 9AN
For: Mr Adam Wiles
RESOLVED Recommend Approval

14/00856/FUL Change of use and alteration of part bowls club building from D2 Use
(Assembly & Leisure) to D1 Use (Non-residential institutions) for use of a
dance school and a pre-school playgroup to include parking and dedicated
outdoor play space for the pre-school playgroup.
Norton Bowls Club, Bowling Lane, Norton, Malton, YO17 8EG
For: Norton Bowls Club (RCLC)
RESOLVED Recommend Approval

14/00921/HOUSE Erection of single storey rear extension and 2.4m high timber fence, re-
rendering of the existing dwelling and widening of existing vehicular access
to the rear following demolition of existing detached garage.
4 St Nicholas Street, Norton, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 9AQ
For: Mr John Todd
RESOLVED Recommend Approval, however Council do query the necessity
of a 2.4m fence where 1.8m would in most circumstances be acceptable.

E. Mail: norton.te@btconnect.com

Page 119



Agenda Iltem 14

Item Number: 14

Application No: 14/01039/FUL

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Appn. Type: Full Application

Applicant: SLM Ltd (Mr Martin Miles)

Proposal: Erection of single storey linked extension to north (front) elevation to form
fitness centre with use of part of adjacent existing changing rooms as a
gym

Location: Ryedale Swimming Pool Mill Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8DJ

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 17 November 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 22 October 2014

Case Officer: Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No views received to date
Highways North Yorkshire No views received to date
Neighbour responses: None

SITE:

Ryedale Swimming Pool is situated on Mill Lane, Pickering. As defined within the Ryedale Local
Plan the site lies within the Development Limits of the town, accommodating an area of public open
space located to the rear.

PROPOSAL:

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a pre-fabricated building extension to north (front)
elevation of Pickering Swimming Pool. The proposal seeks to form a fitness centre incorporating part
of existing changing rooms as a section of the gym.

HISTORY:

There is no planning history relevant to this application.

POLICY:

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
Planning Practice Guidance

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP16 - Design
Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 120



APPRAISAL:
The main considerations when assessing this application are;

1) Character and Form
ii) Residential Amenity

Character and Form

The application proposes a single storey extension located to the front of the main swimming pool
building. The development will project approximately 9 metres to the front and measure
approximately 12 meters in length. The flat roof of the addition will measure 3 metres in height above
ground level.

In order for the proposal to conform to SP16 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy, the extension must
be considered to be appropriate and sympathetic to the character and appearance of the host building.

The view of officers is that the overall scale and height of the proposal is such that it will be
subservient to the host property, and will not over dominate the front elevation. The extension will be
sympathetic to both the character and appearance of the existing building and the visual amenity of
the surrounding area. The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in design terms and in
compliance with the requirements of SP16 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.

Residential Amenity
With regards to residential amenity, the scale and position of the extension would not result in any
material adverse impacts on the amenity of nearby residential properties, or any other surrounding
uses. The development is therefore compliant to the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale
Local Plan Strategy.

At the time of writing, there have been no comments received from Pickering Town Council, the
Highways Authority or any neighbouring properties.

Conclusion

In light of the above assessment, the proposal is considered to meet the relevant policy criteria
outlined in the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. There are
no other material considerations to suggest a determination otherwise. Therefore the recommendation
for this application is one of approval.

Members will note that the consultation period for this application does not expire until 22 October
2014. Delegated Authority is therefore requested to approve the application.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to expiry of consultation period
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Proposed Site Plan 2014-044 A(PL)002

Proposed Ground Floor Plan 2014-044 A(PL)004
Proposed Elevations 2014-044 A(PL)006

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 121



Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 122



SLM

Page 123

RYEDALE SWIMMING POOL EXTENSION

—

17 rmoemgro e, Sheffiekd, 510 22 7108 268 1Y F 0714 000 ) s mad
| I | |

2014044 | A(PL)OO7

[R————— YR
e e

SITE LOCATION PLAN



g e TS
5 1 S O AR
1000V | 07402

WO . |
NV1d 3LIS ONILSIX3
NOISNILX3 100d ONINWIMS T1VAZAY

ubrsaq uedu | Suvendisisen | ubpaq o) | Busssalbu] | AmDAPIY
T LS WL TE0S IR R w
— tem
uospiang jlomimos preypor T T T T ]
I | ,” NN
[ | | D \ \
| / ooy pessein |
/ | | Sy o) b
| ININFOVNYY
| _INIWdOT3AI

T T e

§D Ul_<r\ "

D

avoy NoLwy

FAILOV
wc@CmSm




oD

e T R OIS
W00z . | 2000dN| PHOPLT
NV1d 31IS d3S0dOdd
NOISN3LX3 100d ONINWIMS 3TVAIAY

D

g uean | St | S opan | S | oD

|
| |
\ .
| N
! N\
[ |
| |
/ /
/ |
| | \ /
| [ - P
|
| . [H—
yd
/ |
| | Al | uoysuenc Buipyng
[ o - preouasy e pesodon
[
o

JAILDV
mc@fgm
@



b ues | Buruerdisen | sag o | Sussauls | amparpiy

JAILOV % , 7

wc.@r_m>m

[Arrro ] e
|

T I//L

sospisg 19win0) UK (D
g 1983 10 6 OO - SR DTGNS

W0k . | 001V h0-Ph0C
NV1d 300714 ANNOYO ONILSIX3

NOISN3LX3 T00d ONIAWIMS 3TVAIAY

RN

is

\
|
age

|

At

RYZDALE CM

22 SEP 20 :
HEVELOPMEN
ﬂ>z>®m§m5
Veloat |,



e P L)
g B3 1070 OO - NNV DRI

W0kt . | S000TdV|  ¥rObL0T

! , ; ! I |tk SNOILLVA3T3 ONLLSIX3

NOISN3LX3 100d ONINIWIMS 3TVAIAY

NOILVATT3 LS3M ONLLSIX3

N~
N
i
(<8)
&
NOILVAZT3 LSV ONLLSIX3
YT OALE DM
22 SEP 20
DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT
14 (oroz4 (3N

JAILDV
mc@Cm>m




W00kt . | 9000d)v|  ¥0-b102

NV1d 300714 ANNO¥YO A3SOdO¥d

NOISN31X3 T00d ONINWIMS 3TVaA3AN

,
\
! | %Eﬁﬁf S

A4

Page 128

RYEDALEDM |
i 7 22 SEP 20tk
|

(=== |— —J || Om<MFOﬂZ_mZ._,
, i SEMENT
| [ AANAGEME!
,,, | | [ % . } A \
f
) o B \

Wl oro A\

JAILOV 7

mc.@r_m>m f




e )

- _ 1 o WOk . | S000dV| HO0E
o ’ ° v ¢ ° SNOILVAZT3 a3S0dOodd

NOISN3LX3 100d ONINWIMS 3TVA3AN

NOILVAI13 1S3IM Q3S0d0dd

OO

_ b — 1

7 1
N ,
| sjoued opis
@ | — HAuiA yoaye-youg
podeides swByumOp

os Bupspa — uojsuopxa Buppiing
hiiipiiug — pajeoqe)-aid
usiuy ured foip —

NOILVA3T3 HLNOS ~
‘ | — = P
Jﬁ/ 1= N
| — 7 ! 1T o
h g N
—
= ()
- e o)
| | &
NOILVAST3 1SV3 a3S0d0dd
‘\\
g
3, 22 4 1
Sy or- 1)
;_.sun-...“_ohm\\ | ....va“_wza-u \; N = 1 7
:07““”"&“ ” 03 ysiuy jure - .MM QP
, T r

NOILVYAS13 HLNON a3S0d0o¥d RYIDALE DM
22 SEP 2004
1 A 4 x uvem Um/\m—noﬂugmnﬂ
oseutrs | ,,, o gy wwokinns, i MANAGEM
: N b L B @ DD‘ pevued stousd s /Fr\/OfO)VQr/ﬂ,\Lf.
_ - I I I
B - " ]
eposey J\ i |
L \iﬂui Ry Lo L .
KeuB peAeids-o1 ousely ﬁ 7

JALLOV —

aug,uans INRRRRRIRREERARRRERNE




Agenda Iltem 16

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS

1.

Application No: 14/00114/FUL Decision: Refusal

Parish: Ampleforth Parish Council

Applicant: Mr John Seeger

Location: Land North Of Sewage Works Mill Lane Ampleforth Helmsley

Proposal: Erection of 6 no. general industrial units with associated parking and alterations to
access track to include widening of entrance and formation of passing places

2.

Application No: 14/00362/FUL Decision: Refusal

Parish: Luttons Parish Council

Applicant: Mr David Pattison

Location: Three Tuns Inn Main Street West Lutton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8TA

Proposal: Change of use and alterations of public house to form a 4 bedroom dwelling.

3.

Application No: 14/00517/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish

Applicant: Mr David Lumley

Location: Land At OS Field 5827 New Lane Aislaby Pickering North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of 1no. 18m high (overall tip height 27m) 80KW wind turbine to generate
electricity for on farm use, together with associated electrical substation.

4.

Application No: 14/00623/CLEUD Decision: Approval

Parish: Sand Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Chrissie Murray

Location: Paddock House 35 Main Street Sand Hutton Malton YO41 1LL

Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness that confirms works have been undertaken that constitute a
"material operation" and consequently work has commenced on site and the planning
permission has been implemented in accordance with condition 01 of approval
08/00609/FUL dated 29.08.2008.

5.

Application No: 14/00703/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Acklam Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Leigh Tutill

Location: Land Adj Rose Cottage Main Street Acklam Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of a three bedroom dwelling

6.

Application No: 14/00713/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Foxholes Parish Council

Applicant: Mr David Warters

Location: Boythorpe Cottage Farm Butterwick Weaverthorpe Malton YO17 8HF

Proposal: Erection of detached four bedroom farm house following demolition of existing farm

house

Page 130



7

Application No: 14/00744/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Nawton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Peter DeLacey

Location: Longwood Highfield Lane Nawton Helmsley YO62 7TU

Proposal: Demolition of existing four bedroom dwelling, garaging storage, tack room,
American barn and Dutch barn and erection of replacement six bedroom (Inc. guest
bedroom) dwelling with attached pool house, triple garage/workshop/store and
detached block of 9no. stables with feed store and office and detached relocated tack
room (revised details to refusal 13/01404/FUL dated 10.02.2014)

8.

Application No: 14/00750/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish

Applicant: Mr & Mrs M & S Ward

Location: Land South Of Back Lane South Middleton Pickering North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of a three bedroom dwelling with detached double garage and formation of
vehicular access

9.

Application No: 14/00781/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Helmsley Town Council

Applicant: Mr D Houston

Location: 10 Acres Close Helmsley YO62 5DS

Proposal: T9 Lime Tree - Crown lift to (6m). Crown thin by 15%, T10 Lime Tree - As T9 plus
end weight reduction of three lowest limbs that are over-extended T11 Lime Tree -
As T9 plus removal of limb over garage

10.

Application No: 14/00778/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Salton Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Shaw

Location: Outbuilding To Rear Of Lockwood Cottages Main Street Salton Kirkbymoorside

Proposal: Erection of detached double garage with storage above for ancillary use of the
adjacent holiday let to the east.

11.

Application No: 14/00780/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Applicant: Kirkbymoorside Landrovers (Mr Paul Wade)

Location: Kirkbymoorside Land Rover 50 Kirkby Mills Industrial Estate Kirkbymoorside
York YO62 6QR

Proposal: Erection of extension to south elevation of existing workshop building.

12.

Application No: 14/00788/HOUSE Decision: Refusal

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Sheila Everist

Location: Church Cottage Church End Sheriff Hutton YO60 6SY

Proposal: Erection of a detached summer house

13.

Application No: 14/00795/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Page 131



Applicant:

Mr Peter Fahey

Location: Pooh Corner Cattle Market Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7JN

Proposal: Erection of first floor extension with 2no. dormer windows to front (south) section of
dwelling and pitched roof to existing flat roof section of dwelling to include raising
of eaves and height of dwelling.

14.

Application No: 14/00807/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Scackleton Parish Council

Applicant: Ramsey Brothers (Mr John Ramsey)

Location: Scackleton Grange Farm Grange Lane Scackleton YO62 4NB

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of livestock.

15.

Application No: 14/00812/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Brigham Park Golf Course (Mr & Mrs Richard Avison)

Location: Lane View Upper Carr Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7JP

Proposal: Change of use, alteration and extension of golf club store and reception area to form
a two bedroom residential live/work unit including workshop (Use Class B1), revised
vehicular access with parking/turning area and garden area.

16.

Application No: 14/00817/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Sinnington Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs L Newbronner

Location: Land East Of Main Street Sinnington Pickering

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to equestrian use to include the retention of the
existing mobile field shelter on an area of hardstanding and the erection of a hay store
and tack store.

17.

Application No: 14/00826/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Cedarbarn Farm Shop (Mr Karl Avison)

Location: Cedar Barn Farm Shop Thornton Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7HZ

Proposal: Installation of 40KW peak ground mounted solar PV syatem (160 panels in total) to
generate electricity for the Cedar Barn farm shop and Estate.

18.

Application No: 14/00830/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Westow Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Smith

Location: Merry Hill Main Street Westow York YO60 7NE

Proposal: Erection of first floor extension to front elevation

19.

Application No: 14/00834/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Punch Taverns Ltd

Location: Black Bull Inn Malton Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8EA

Proposal: Erection of canopy to north elevation of holiday lets building with privacy screens to

form individual private covered seating areas to each of the 4no. apartments.

Page 132



20.

Application No: 14/00838/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Patrick Skelton

Location: 11 Chestnut Avenue Main Street Welburn Malton YO60 7EH

Proposal: Formation of vehicular access.

21.

Application No: 14/00863/GPAGB Decision: Approval

Parish: Settrington Parish Council

Applicant: Settrington Estate (Mr Kenelm Storey)

Location: Buildings At Crosscliffe Farm Forkers Lane Settrington Malton North Yorkshire
YO17 8DR

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural buildings to a three bedroom dwelling house (Use Class
C3) with associated operational development.

22,

Application No: 14/00870/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estates (Mr K Davies)

Location: Old Talbot Yard Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Internal alterations to allow production and retail of food products to include
underdrawing of rafters, erection of stud wall partitions, painting of interior walls and
tiling of floor together with installation of brick chimney in a central position on the
roof to house extract duct from cooking area.

23.

Application No: 14/00871/73A Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mrs Lesley Warrington

Location: Beansheaf Farm Bean Sheaf Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO17 6UE

Proposal: Variation of Condition 17 of approval 11/00905/FUL dated 26.10.2011 to replace
drawings 201117/103-B 'Unit 3 Workshop/Store Conversion' and 201117/104-B
'Unit 4 Workshop/Office Conversion' with AR50-01 Proposed Plans and Elevations'
and to replace drawing 201117/102-B "Unit 1 Barn Conversion' with AR50-02 'Barn
Conversion Elevations' and AR50-03 'Barn Conversion Floor Plans'.

24,

Application No: 14/00877/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mr B Brewer

Location: 6 Castle Howard Drive Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7BA

Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension to incorporate integral garage

25.

Application No: 14/00885/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Helmsley Town Council

Applicant: Ms Valerie Cocks

Location: 22 Bondgate Helmsley York YO62 SBR

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension following demolition of existing
conservatory.

26.

Application No: 14/00890/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Norton Town Council

Page 133



Applicant:

Mr & Mrs R M Jacques

Location: 20 Field View Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9AZ

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part first floor extension to side and rear elevations
(revised details to refusal 14/00615/HOUSE dated 24.07.2014).

27.

Application No: 14/00895/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Ryedale District Council (Mr Mike Adams)

Location: 36 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AB

Proposal: Strengthening of the first floor structure to the large southern room

28.

Application No: 14/00897/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Burythorpe Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Paul Shanks

Location: Cuba Cottage Burythorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9LB

Proposal: Erection of two storey rear extension with attached conservatory following
demolition of existing flat roofed two storey extension.

29.

Application No: 14/00919/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Huttons Ambo Parish Council

Applicant: R F Racing Ltd (Mr Richard Fahey)

Location: The Mews House Musley Bank Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6TD

Proposal: Re-roofing of existing stable block

30.

Application No: 14/00920/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Malton & Old Malton Cricket Club

Location: Malton And Old Malton Cricket Club Old Malton Road Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Siting of storage container (retrospective application)

31.

Application No: 14/00931/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Clerk Of Trustees Pickering And Hull Quaker Area Meeting

Location: Friends Meeting House Castlegate Pickering North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of 2.4m high 11.97W lamp post

32.

Application No: 14/00938/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Sproxton Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Franklin Farrar

Location: Whin Covert Main Street Sproxton Helmsley YO62 SEF

Proposal: Erection of detached timber garden shed

Page 134



Agenda Iltem 17

O3 The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 1 September 2014

by David C Pinner BSc (Hons) DipTP MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 25 September 2014

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/A/14/2211925
High Barn, West Lutton, Malton, YO17 8TL

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr D Morgan against the decision of Ryedale District Council.
The application Ref: 13/00699/FUL, dated 12 June 2013, was refused by notice dated
27 November 2013.

The development proposed is 1 x 30m high (hub) wind turbine and associated
development.

Decision

1.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for 1 x 30m high
(hub) wind turbine and associated development at High Barn, West Lutton,
Malton, YO17 8TL in accordance with the terms of the application,

Ref: 13/00699/FUL, dated 12 June 2013, and the plans submitted with it,
subject to the following conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision;

2) In the event that the development permanently ceases to be used for the
generation of electricity, the wind turbine shall be removed from the land
and the land shall be restored to its former appearance within six months
of the date when electricity generation permanently ceases;

3) Prior to the commencement of development, the developer shall notify
the local planning authority of the dates for commencement and
completion of construction works; the maximum height of construction
equipment and the precise longitude and latitude of the turbine.

Main issue

2. From the information submitted with the application and the consultation
responses, I have no reason to conclude that there are any issues other than
the landscape impact (including cumulative impact) of the proposed turbine, as
set out in the Council’s reason for refusing planning permission.

Reasons

3. All wind turbine development involves the introduction of tall structures into

the landscape. By its very nature, it tends to be visible over a wide area, the
extent of which depends on the height of the particular turbine. Nevertheless,
views of turbines generally come and go as views are obscured by intervening

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectoratepage 135



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/14/2211925

structures, landform and vegetation. In adverse weather conditions, even
large turbines can become difficult to see. In this case, the proposed turbine is
of a similar height to a turbine erected at Manor House, a little over 1km from
the appeal site. I would describe this as a farm scale turbine with only
relatively local visual impact.

4. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) presumes in favour of
sustainable development. Paragraph 93 establishes that planning plays a key
role in helping to secure radical reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and in
supporting the delivery of low carbon energy and associated infrastructure.
The paragraph goes on to explain that these, amongst other things, are central
to the environmental, social and economic dimensions of sustainable
development.

5. The environmental element of sustainable development also includes the
protection and enhancement of the natural, built and historic landscapes. Wind
turbine development often results in the introduction of a prominent vertical
structure that has nothing to do with local crafts and traditions into a valued
landscape. It is unlikely that the introduction of such an alien feature could
ever be regarded as an enhancement of a rural landscape and it is often
argued that wind turbine development is not intrinsically sustainable where it
has an adverse landscape impact. I disagree with that analysis because
paragraph 93 of the NPPF makes the delivery of low-carbon energy and its
associated infrastructure central to the three dimensions of sustainable
development. If adverse landscape impact were always to trump the other
sustainability criteria, it is difficult to see how the delivery of low carbon energy
could be central to the three dimensions of sustainable development. In
practice, I think that what this means is that when it comes to the planning
balance, landscape harm has to be of sufficient magnitude to outweigh the
presumption in favour of the (sustainable) low-carbon energy development
rather than the other way round.

6. The Ryedale Local Plan Strategy also aims to protect the landscape, including
the landscape of the area in which this development is proposed, which is
identified as being valued locally but not having any statutory designation such
as National Park or Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Policy SP18 of the
Local Plan Strategy encourages renewable energy development provided that it
can be successfully assimilated into the landscape.

7. In this case, the local landscape is typical of the Yorkshire Wolds, with
expansive views over undulating countryside under big skies. The character of
the landscape is very heavily influenced by the arable farming practices of the
day. Fields are open and often very large to facilitate the use of modern farm
machinery such as combine harvesters. Whilst the appearance of the fields will
change with the seasons, the use of large machines in their cultivation and
cropping is a major influence on their character and appearance, which I would
describe as machine-made rather than on a human scale. Fields are often
bounded by hedgerows with occasional plantations. These and the undulating
landform filter or obscure some views of the existing turbines in the area.
Farmsteads are generally quite widely spaced apart, often with extensive
ranges of modern portal-framed buildings. In my view, the existence of
several turbines already demonstrates that this is a landscape which has
capacity to absorb widely-spaced farm sized turbines without unduly affecting
the character or quality of the landscape.

www.planningportal-gov'UK/pIannmngpeCtp&ge 1326



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/14/2211925

8. There are already several farm-scale wind turbines (i.e. relatively small
turbines designed to provide electricity for the farm upon which they are
located) in the area around the appeal site, but they are quite widely spaced
and the relatively small number of farmsteads limits the extent to which similar
turbines could proliferate. I accept that there are places from where the
proposed turbine would be seen in conjunction with some or all of the other
nearest turbines (the nearest would be Manor House, already mentioned).
Some fairly localised close views of the proposed turbine would be available
from Green Lane, where it would be seen at its full height, unfiltered by any
vegetation, intervening structures or landform. Nevertheless, small to medium
size wind turbines related to the needs of the farm upon which they are
situated are becoming increasingly common in rural areas. They perhaps
ought not to be regarded as any more alien to the rural landscape than other
features of a modern farm, such as industrial-scale buildings, silos, slurry tanks
and so on. Such features rarely improve the appearance of the area, but are
an essential part of a thriving agricultural enterprise. The ability to use a
natural resource to generate much of the electricity used by the farm would
assist in the profitability of the enterprise as well as reducing greenhouse gas
emissions. The proposed turbine would therefore have clear environmental
and economic benefits.

9. On balance, whilst I acknowledge that the proposed turbine would cause some
harm by reason of its individual and cumulative visual impacts, the local
landscape has the capacity to absorb the proposed development without
causing undue harm to its character. In this respect, the scheme complies with
policy SP18 with the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. I conclude that the adverse
effects of the scheme are insufficient to outweigh the presumption in favour of
sustainable development and that the appeal should succeed.

Conditions

10. The Council has not suggested any conditions. However, as the proposal is for
a development comprising a machine that might eventually become worn out, I
shall impose a condition requiring it to be removed if it ceases to be used for
generating electricity. The highway authority has suggested conditions relating
to the condition of Green Lane and to the agreement to a route for construction
traffic. The turbine components do not represent abnormal loads and Green
Lane is already in a poor state with “Temporary Road Surface” signs erected.

It would be unduly onerous for the appellants to have to undertake full road
condition surveys before and after the delivery of the components, given the
small number of vehicle movements likely to be generated. As no abnormal
loads are necessitated and the access to the land has to be from Green Lane, I
do not consider it necessary to agree a route for construction traffic. I shall
impose a condition requiring the developer to notify the local planning authority
of the date construction starts and ends, the maximum height of construction
equipment and the latitude and longitude of the turbine so that they can pass
that information to the Defence Infrastructure Organisation for plotting on
maps to ensure that military aircraft avoid the area, as requested in their
consultation response.

Other matters

11. I have considered other matters raised in the representations. Paragraph 98 of
the NPPF says that local planning authorities should not require applicants to

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectoratepage’j 137



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/14/2211925

demonstrate a need for energy development and should recognise that even
small-scale projects provide a valuable contribution to cutting greenhouse gas
emissions. There is no evidence that the presence of wind turbines has an
adverse effect on tourism. Neither these nor any other matters raised are
sufficient to alter my conclusion that the proposed development should be
permitted.

David C Pinner

Inspector

www.planningportal-gov'UK/pIannmngpeCtp&ge 1348



O3 The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 1 September 2014

by David C Pinner BSc (Hons) DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 25 September 2014

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/A/14/2214575
Jubilee Farm, Helperthorpe, Malton

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Messrs Ian and Tim Stubbins against the decision of Ryedale
District Council.

e The application Ref: 13/00624/FUL, dated 23 May 2013, was refused by notice dated
28 October 2013.

e The development proposed is 1 x 36.4m high (hub) wind turbine with a tip height of
46.0m.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for is 1 x 36.4m high
(hub) wind turbine with a tip height of 46.0m at Jubilee Farm, Helperthorpe,
Malton in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref: 13/00624/FUL,
dated 23 May 2013, and the plans submitted with it, subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

2) In the event that the development permanently ceases to be used for the
generation of electricity, the wind turbine shall be removed from the land
and the land shall be restored to its former appearance within six months
of the date when electricity generation permanently ceases;

3) Prior to the commencement of development, the developer shall notify
the local planning authority of the dates for commencement and
completion of construction works; the maximum height of construction
equipment and the precise longitude and latitude of the turbine;

4) Development shall not take place until the developer has secured the
implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance
with a scheme of investigation that shall have been first submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Main Issue

2. From the information submitted with the application and the consultation
responses, I have no reason to conclude that there are any issues other than
the landscape impact (including cumulative impact) of the proposed turbine, as
set out in the Council’s reason for refusing planning permission.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectoratepage 139



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/14/2214575

Reasons

3.

Section 10 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is concerned with
meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change, with
paragraph 93 reaffirming that planning plays a key rdle in securing radical
reductions in greenhouse gas emissions, minimising vulnerability and providing
resilience to the impacts of climate change and supporting the delivery of low-
carbon energy and associated infrastructure. It goes on to say that this is
central to the economic, social and environmental dimensions of sustainable
development.

Paragraph 98 of the NPPF says that applicants for energy development should
not be required to demonstrate the need for renewable or low-carbon energy
and that even small-scale projects provide a valuable contribution to cutting
greenhouse gas emissions. Applications should be approved if the project’s
impacts are (or can be made) acceptable.

The Ryedale Local Plan Strategy aims to protect the landscape, including the
landscape of the area in which this development is proposed, which is identified
as being valued locally but not having any statutory designation such as
National Park or Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Policy SP18 of the Local
Plan Strategy encourages renewable energy development provided that it can
be successfully assimilated into the landscape. Policy SP19 recognises the
presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the NPPF.

Jubilee Farm lies within the built-up part of Helperthorpe and the appeal site
lies on rising ground to the south of the village, a little under 500m from the
nearest dwelling. The proposed turbine would be likely to be seen from
properties in Helperthorpe and also from various other vantage points as
illustrated in the photomontages submitted by the appellant. These include
photomontages that show the cumulative visual impact of the proposed turbine
and the turbines at Manor Farm and Spaniel Farm. Sequential visual impacts
would be experienced by people travelling through the landscape. According to
the information provided by the Council, there are four other turbines currently
installed within 3km of the appeal site with another four, including the appeal
scheme, pending. Of these, two are somewhat larger than the appeal scheme
whilst that at High Barn, East Lutton, is for a similar sized turbine.

The local landscape is typical of the Yorkshire Wolds, with expansive views over
undulating countryside under big skies. The character of the landscape is very
heavily influenced by the arable farming practices of the day. Fields are open
and often very large to facilitate the use of modern farm machinery such as
combine harvesters. Whilst the appearance of the fields will change with the
seasons, the use of large machines in their cultivation and cropping is a major
influence on their character and appearance, which I would describe as
machine-made rather than on a human scale. Fields are often bounded by
long, straight hedgerows with occasional plantations. Farmsteads are generally
quite widely spaced apart, often with extensive ranges of modern portal-
framed buildings.

The proposed turbine, along with the others in the area that have been
installed already, is what I would describe as farm-scale (i.e. relatively small
turbines designed to provide electricity for the farm upon which they are
located). Such turbines are becoming increasingly common in rural areas,
although perhaps not in those with a national landscape designation, to the

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectp&ge 1&0



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/14/2214575

10.

extent that they might be regarded as no more alien to the rural landscape
than other features of a modern farm, such as industrial-scale buildings, silos,
slurry tanks and so on. Such features rarely improve the appearance of the
area, but are an essential part of a thriving agricultural enterprise. The ability
to use a natural resource to generate much of the electricity used by the farm
would assist in the profitability of the enterprise as well as reducing greenhouse
gas emissions. The proposed turbine would therefore have clear environmental
and economic benefits.

Generally speaking, farm-scale turbines are usually dwarfed by the landscape
and views of them come and go depending on the weather, landform, level of
tree cover and intervening buildings and other structures. In my view, the
existing turbines demonstrate that this is a landscape which has capacity to
absorb such widely-spaced farm sized turbines without unduly affecting its
character or quality.

On balance, whilst I acknowledge that the proposed turbine would cause some
harm by reason of its individual and cumulative visual impacts, the local
landscape has the capacity to absorb the proposed development without
causing undue harm to its character or appearance. In this respect, the
scheme complies with policy SP18 with the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. 1
conclude that the adverse effects of the scheme are insufficient to outweigh the
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that the appeal should
succeed.

Conditions

11.

The Council has not suggested any conditions. However, as the proposal is for
a development comprising a machine that might eventually become worn out, I
shall impose a condition requiring it to be removed if it ceases to be used for
generating electricity. I shall impose a condition requiring the developer to
notify the local planning authority of the date construction starts and ends, the
maximum height of construction equipment and the latitude and longitude of
the turbine so that they can pass that information to the Defence Infrastructure
Organisation for plotting on maps to ensure that military aircraft avoid the
area, as requested in their consultation response. The County Council’s
Historic Environment Team note that the proposed turbine lies within an area
of archaeological potential and interest and a condition is therefore needed to
ensure that nothing of interest is inadvertently destroyed as a result of the
development.

Other matters

12.

I have considered other matters raised in the representations. There is no
evidence that the presence of wind turbines has an adverse effect on tourism.
Whilst I appreciate the concerns of local residents with regard to potential noise
and shadow flicker, the proposed turbine would be sited far enough away from
the nearest dwellings to ensure that any problems would be extremely unlikely.
With regard to the proliferation of turbines, the distance between individual
farms limits the number of turbines that are likely to be proposed, but each
would need to be considered on its own merits.

David C Pinner

Inspector

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectoratepage’j 141



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 23 September 2014
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 14/00900/MFUL - Mill House, Scarborough Road, East Knapton, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Revised Site Layout Plan
	4 Revised Plan
	5 Revised Floor Plan
	6 Revised Elevations
	7 Design & Access Statement

	7 14/00914/MFUL - Fosters Wold Farm, Weaverthorpe, Malton
	2 Site Location plan
	3 Site Layout Plan
	4 Proposed Plans
	5 Supporting doc
	6 Design & Access Statement
	7 Parish

	8 14/00613/OUT - Land Off Kirk Balk Lane, Claxton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 executive summary
	5 Design & Access Statement
	6 Parish

	9 14/00856/FUL - Norton Bowls Club, Bowling Lane, Norton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Site Layout Plan
	4 Existing Floor Plans
	5  Proposed Floor Plans
	6 Existing Elevations
	7 Proposed Elevations
	8 Supporting doc
	9 Parish

	10 14/00882/HOUSE - Lilac Cottage, Main Street, Wombleton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plan
	4 Existing Plans
	5 Proposed Plans
	6 Design & Access Statement
	7 Parish

	11 14/00883/HOUSE - Nesslyn, West End, Sheriff Hutton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 Revised Plan
	5 Existing Plans
	6 Parish

	12 14/00889/HOUSE - Green View, Page Lane, Wombleton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 Existing Floor Plan
	5 Proposed Floor Plans
	6 Existing Elevation
	7 Proposed Elevations
	8 Design & Access Statement
	9 Parish

	13 14/00909/HOUSE - Newlands, 4 St Peters Crescent, Norton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 Plan Revised
	5 Parish

	14 14/01039/FUL - Ryedale Swimming Pool, Mill Lane, Pickering
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Site Layout Plan
	4 Existing Floor Plans
	5 Existing Elevation
	6 Proposed Floor Plan
	7 Proposed Elevation

	16 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	17 Update on Appeal Decisions
	2 INSPECTOR'S DECISION 2


